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BENITEZ. CPAPSC
Certifi ed Public AccoLrntanls and Business Consullants

Indepetrdent Auditors'Report on Basic Fitrancial Statements and Suppledentarv Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards

The Honorable Mayor, Members
ofthe Municipal Legislature and
People of the Municipality of Aibonito,
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governnental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund inJormation of the Municipality of
Aibonito of the Commoflwealth of Puerto fuco (the Municipality), as of and for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 201l, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the

accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's
management. Ou. responsibility is to express opinions on these frnancial statements based on our audit.

Except as discussed in the following paragraphs, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards geneElly accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit ilcludes
examidng, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the signihcant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that oui audit
provides a reasoneble basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note l, the Municipality did not have complete and accurate accoutrting records of its
capital assets acquired or constructed before January 9, 2009. In addition, the Municipality did not
perform a physical inventory of such capital assets during the iast five fiscal years, which ultimately
affects the valuation of such assets at June 30, 2011. Accordingly, we could not apply adequate auditing
procedures to ascertain the existence, valuation and ownership of those capital assets recorded in the
accompanying statement of net assets for $19,528,897, net of accumulated depreciation of$13,040,981.

As discussed in Note 7, the other (nonmajo.) governmental funds ofthe Municipality rcpo.ted as part of
its assets, the balances due ftom other govemmental funds amounting to $1,901,445 at June 30, 2011 of
which $1,900,733 represent unsupported inter-fund loans carried over fron January 9, 2009 without
being collected. Tlte Municipality did not have complete and accuate accounting records of ilter-fund
balances recorded in books on or before January 9, 2009, including a subsidiary record documenting the

collection procedures made by management and the repa).rnent and other tems and conditions of inter-
fund loaos, transfers and reimbursements among govemmental funds. These conditions raise substantial

doubts about the existence and valuation of a portion of the other (nonmajor) governmental funds'
uncollected inter-fund advances amounting to $1.900,733 at June 30,2011. The ultimate outcome of
the existence, valuation and collectibility ofrhe afo.emeotioned intet-fund advances camot p.esently be

determined.

P0. Box 191503, SanJuan, Pueno Rico 0091$1503 Tel.787-6031600



In our opinion, except for the matters discussed in the preceding paragraphs, the financial statements

referred to above presett fairly, in all material respects, the hnancial position of the govemmental

activities, each major govemmental firnd and the aggrcgate rcmaining govemmental fund information of
the Municipality ofAibonito, Commonrealth of Puerto Rico, as ofJune 30, 2011, in conformity with
accountilg principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

AIso, in our opinion, the financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

finalcial position, the chaoges in financial position and cash flows ofthe business-type activities ofthe
Municipality of Aibonito, Commonwealth of Puerto fuco, as of June 30, 2011, in conformity with
accounting principles gene.ally accepted in the United States ofAmedca.

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated November 28,

2011, on our consideration of the Muricipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
intemal contol over financial reportiI1g and on olu tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other mafters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our lesting of i[temai control over financiai reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting and
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfomed in acco.dance with Govemment
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results ofour audit.

Accounting principles genemlly accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Informalion on pages 4 tbrough 19 and 74 be

presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, aithough not a part of the

basic financial statements, is required by the Governinental Accounting Standards Board, who considers

it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic hnancial statements in an appropriate

operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required

supplementary information in accordance u'ith auditing standards generally accepted in the Udted
States of Americ4 which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency \lith management's respoNes to orr
inquiries, the basic financial statements, ard other knowledge we obtained during ow audit ofthe basic

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assuance on the information because

the limited procedures do not provide us with suflicient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
asstuance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formilg opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the Municipality's basic hnancial statements as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as requi.ed
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States and Local Go|ernmehts,
arul nuon-Profit Organizatio s, and is also not a required part of the basic inancial statements oi the

Municipality. The Schedule of Expenditures and Federal Au'ards are the responsibility of management

ald were deived from and rclate direcdy to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare

the financial statements. The iDformation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit ofthe financial statements and cefiain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such infomation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statemens themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with

EorNrrzltmr, cPA PSC



auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ln our opinion, the information is

fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole'

November 28. 2011
Toa Alta, Puerto Rico

Stamp No. 2596733
was aff1xed to the
original repon.

w- t;.

EscNIEZJ,{IME, cPA PSC
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
COMMON\ EALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO

Managemenls Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

As management of the Municipality of Aibonito (the Municipality), we offer readers the

following discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial activities reported in the

accompanying basic financial statem€nts for the fiscal year ended June 30,2011. We encourage

readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that
is fumished in the accompanying financial statements, which follow this narrative

As more fully described in Note l, On July 1,2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 39, Detemining Whether Certain Organbations are Component Units an

Anendment of GASB Statene i No. 14 (GASB No- 39). Based on the criteria established by
GASB No.39, the Municipality's management concluded that there are no legally sepamte

entities or organizations that should be reported as component units ofthe Municipality as of and

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Therefore, Las Flores Apartments (FmHA and HUD
Project No. 63-005-660-43-3572) was reported as a business-type activity and not as a component

unit ofthe Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201l.

FINANCIAL IIIGIILIGHTS

G o v e m me nt- Wid e E ig h I ig h t s :

. The Municipality's total assets amounted to $59,148,192 at June 30, 2011, of which

$37,462,1'70 (63%) consist of capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization of $16.280.741). $18.602.270 (327o) consist of cash and cash equivalents, (of
which $14,955,579 are restricted for specific purposes), $2,625,836 (4o%) consist ofaccounts
receivable. ret ofthe reserve for doubtful account, and $457,616 (1%) consist of other assets.

. The Municipality's total liabilities amounted to $21,189,481 at June 30,2011, of which

$15,546,431 consist ofbonds and notes payable, $2,079,328 consist of uneamed revenues,

$2,3?0,816 consist of accounts payable and accrued liabitities, and $1,192,906 consist of
accmed compensated absences.

. The Municipality's assets exceeded its liabilities (net assets/surylus) by $]7,958,71I at June

30, 201l.

. The Municipality's total revenues amounted to $15,829,977 for the fiscal year ended June

30,2011, ofwhich $5,476,518 arose from taxes, $8,918,044 arose from intergovemmental
grants and contributions, and $1,435,415 arose from charges for services, interest on deposits

and miscellaneous rcvenues.

. The Municipality's expenses amounted to S12,612,445 for the fiscal year ended June 30,

20)1, of which $8,350,549 where incurred in providing direct services and benefits to
citizens in relation to urban and economic development, health and sanitation, public safety,

public housing and welfare, and culture, recreation and education. In addition, the

Municipality incurred $492,074 of its total expenses, in interests related to its long-term
obligations, and $3,769,822 (in general govemment activities to support the Municipality's
functions and progams. The Municipality's expenses include depreciation in the amount of
$1,610,225, for the fiscal year ended June 30,2011.
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MUNICIPALTTY oF AIBoNITo
CoMMoN\trEALTH of PUERTo RIco

MaMgement's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30- 2011

. The Municipality's net assets increased by $3,217,532 during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011.

Goternrrrental Funds' Highlights:

The total fund balance of govemmental funds amounted to $16,370,038 at June 30, 2011, of
which $661,118 are assigned, $15,621,954 arc restricted, and $86,966 represents an
unassigned balance.

The total fimd balances ofgovemmental funds increased by $6,781,289 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 20 I I -

Pruptietery F t d Highlighls:

The total restricted tund net assets ofthe proprietary fund amounted to $1,532,078, ofwhich
$1,058,588 are invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt, while $473,490 are reshicted for
the operations of federally funded programs.

. The total restricted fund net assets of the proprietary fund increased by $1,285 during the
fiscal year ended June 30,201t.

OI,ERIIEW OF THtr BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The pupose of financial reporting is to provide extemal users ofbasic financial statements with
information that will help them to make decisions or dmw conclusions about the Municipality.
There are many extemal parties that use the basic financial statements of the Municipality;
however, these parties do not always have the same specific objecti\,es. In order to address the
needs of as many parties as reasonably possible, the Municipality, in accordance with required
financial reporting standards, presents this Managemenfs Discussioo and Anaiysis (MD&A) as
an introduction to the accompanying basic financial statements. This nanative represents an
overview and analys;s of the financial activities ofthe Municipality for the fiscal vear ended June
30, 2011. Because this MD&A is designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting
changes and currently known facts, we encouage readers to consider the information presented in
this MD&A in conjuncaion with the additional information furnished in the accompanying basic
financial statements.

The Municipality's basic financial statements include three components: (1) govemment-wide
financial stalements (GWFS), (2) fund financial statemenrs (FFS), and (3) notes to the basic
financial statements (].IBFS). This report also contains additional required information in
addition to the basic fioancial statements 1hemselves. These components are described below.

The basic financial sratements focus on: (1) tle Municipality as a whole (govemmenFwide
financial rcporting) and, (2) the Municipality's major individual govemmental and proprietary
funds. Both perspectives allow the users to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or govemment to govemment) and enhance the Municipality's
accountability. Tte components ofthe basic financial statements are described below.

f



MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
COMMoN,EALTH oF PUERTo IUco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2011

a) Goternmentwide FinancialSlolements

The GWFS are composed of: (l) the statements of net assets (SNA) and (2) the statement of
activities (SA). These financial statements can be found immediately following this MD&A.
GWIS are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Municipality's
operations as a whole in a manner similar to private-sector business. These statements
provide short-term and long-term information about the Municipality's financial position,
which assist the Municipality's management to dete.mine the economic condition at June 30,
2011. Th€ GWFS are prepared using methods that are similar to those used by most private
businesses.

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish iirnctions ofthe Municipality
that are principaliy supported by taxes and intergovemmeotal activities Govemmental
acriyrr?s) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion oftheir
costs through user Ges and charges (bu.siness-lype acririties).

Stat€ment ofN€t Assets

The purpose ofSNA is to attempt to report all assets owned alld all liabilities owed by the
Municipatity. The Municipality repo(s of all of its assets when it acquires ownership
over the assets and reports all of its liabilities when they are incurred. For example, the
Municipality reports buildings and infrastructure as assets, even though they are not
available to pay the obligations incurred by the Municipality. On the other hand, the
Municipalily repo(s liabiiities, such as claims andjudgments, bonds and notes payabie,
obligations under capital leases, compensated absences and certain accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, even though these liabilities might not be paid until several fiscal years
into the firture.

The difference between the Municipality's total assets and total liabilities reported in
SNA is presented as ,e, asrers, which is similar to the total owners' equit) reported by a
commercial enterprise in its financial statements. Although the purpose of the
Municipality is not to accumulate net assets, as this amount increases oa decreases over
time, such amount represents a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Municipality is either improving or deteriorating, respectively.

Statement of Activities

The SA presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets changed during
the fiscal year elded June 30, 2011, by presenting all ofthe Municipality's revenues and
expenses. As previously discussed, the items reported in SA aae measured in a manner
similar to the approach used by a commercial enterpdse in that revenues are recognized
when earned or established criteria are satisfied, and expenses are r€corded when
incured by the Municipality. Consequently, revenues are reported even when they may
not be collected for seveml months after the end of the fiscal year and expenses are

recorded even though they may not have used cash during the current year.

Although SA looks different from a commercial ente4,rise's income statement, the
difference is only in format, not substance. Whereas the bottom line in a commercial

1.

2.
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b)

MUMCIPALITY OF ATBONITO

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO IIICO
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

enterprise represents its net income, the Municipality reports an amount described as ,?3/

change in net assets, \\hich is essentially the same concePt.

The focus of SA is on the re, cosl of various activities provided by the Municipality. The

statement begins with a column that identifies the cost of each of the Municipality's
major functions. Another column identifies the revenues that are specifically related to

the classified govemmental functions. The difference betw€en the expenses and rcvenues

related to specific functions/programs identifies the extent to which each function of dre

Municipality draws from geneml revenues or is self-financing through fees,

intergovemmental aid, and other sources ofresources.

This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues

for each function of the Municipality-

GWFS and GFFS present all of the Municipality's govemmental activities, which are

supported mostly by ta\es and intergovemmental revenues (such as fedeml and state gmnts

and contributions). All services nomally associated with the Municipality fall into this

category, including culture, rccreation and education; gene.al govemment; health and

sanitation; public safety; public housing and welfa.e; and economic and urban development.

Fund Fi a cial Sutemenls

The Municipality's FFS consist of: (1) the balance sheet - govemmental funds, (2) the

statement ofrcvenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances govemmental funds, (3)

the statement of net assets proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues, expenses and

changes in fund net assets -proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows
proprieta.y fund. These financial statements rcport the financial position, the results of
operations and cash flows ofthe Municipality's govemmental and p.oprietary funds, with an

emphasis oD the Municipality's major governmental and proprietary funds.

A fund is a grouping ofrelated accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that

have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like most other

state and local govemments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance

with finance-related legal requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity

accounted for within a set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, firnd

equity! revenue, and expenditures. Fund accounting se$egates funds according to their
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with legal,

financial and contractual provisions. All ofthe firnds ofthe Municipality can be divided into

two catego.ies: govemmental funds and proprietary funds.

1. Governmetrtal funds

Govemmental funds are used to account for most of the services provided by the

Municipali6. These funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported

as govemmental activities in the G\!TS. Unlike GWFS, the focus of govemmental funds

in the FFS is directed to specific activities of the Municipality rather than the

Municipality as a whole; therefore, govemmental funds in FFS report the Municipality's
operations in more detail than the GWFS.

,7



2.

MUNICTPALITY OT AIAOMTO
CoMNToNwEALTH oT PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,20i 1

Govemmental funds in FFS provide a detailed short{em view of the Municipality's
finances that assist in determining whether there rvill be adequate financial resources

available to meet the current needs of the Municipality, which is, evaluating the

Municipality's near-term financing requirements. For financial reporting purpos€s, the
Municipality classifies its govemmental firnds within the following types: (1) general

fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) special revenue funds, (4) capital projects funds and (5)
permanent funds-

Govemmental funds FFS are prepared on an accounting basis that is significantly
different from that used to prepare GWFS. In general, govemmental funds FFS focus on

near-term i[flows and outflows of expendable financial resoulces, consequently, they
measure and account for cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash. Fol
example, amounts reported on the balance sheet include capital assets within a very sho(
period of time, but do not include capital assets such as land and buildings.
Govemmental fund liabilities genemlly include amounts that normally are going to be

paid within a short period after the end of the fiscal yea.. The difference between a

fund's total assets and total liabilities is reported as fie fund balance or deficit, and

generally indicates the amount that can be used to finance the next fiscal year's activities.
Likewise, the operating statement for govemmental funds reports only those .evenues

and expenditures that were collected in cash or paid with cash, .espectively, during the

currenr fiscal year or very shortly after the end ofthe fiscal year.

Because the focus of govemmental funds FFS is narrorver than that of the GWIS, it is

useful to compare the fund information presented for govemmental funds with similar
informatioD presented for govemmental activities in the GWIS. By doing so, readers

may better understand the long-term impact of the MuniciPality's near{em financial
decisions- Both the govemmental firnds' balance sheet and the govemmental funds'

statement of revenues, expenditurcs and changes in fund balances provide a

reconciliation to facilitate the comparison benveen Sovemmental funds and the
govemmental activities reported in the govemment-wide financial statements.

The Municipality has five major govemmental funds. Each major fund is presented in a
sepamte column in the balance sheet - govemmental funds and the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in fund balances _ govemmental funds. The five major
govemmental funds are: (l) general tund, (2) debt service fund, (3) capital projects fund,
(4) legislative j oint resolutions tund, and (5) special communjties trust fund.

Proprietary fund

The proprietary fund is a fund used to repofi the financial position, results of operation

and cash flows of Las Flores Apartments (FmHA and Hud Project No. 63-005-660-43-

35?2). Is a housing developmena consisting ofeighty-four ( 100) dwelling units located in
Aibonito. The ploject is owned by the Municipalify, but its oPerations are carried out by
a private management agent unrelated io the Municipality. The housing development

project of Las Flores Apanments has been designed to assist various segments of the

general public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental housing. The proje.t
operates under financing through the Section 8 New Constructiofi and Substantial

Rehabilitation Program ofthe U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development and

8
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.t)

MUMCIPALITY oF AIBoNrro
COMMONWEALTH oF PUf, RTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2011

the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Progmm of rhe U.S. Department of
Agliculture. The purpose of Las Flores Apartments is to provide adequate housing to
low-income residents of the Municipality.

The activities of Las Flores Apartments have been reported as a prop.ietary fund in the
accompanying basic financial statements since GAAP pemits the use ofenterprise firnds
to report any activity for which a fee is charged to extemal users of goods or services,
regardless of whether the govemment intends to fully recover the cost of the goods or
services provided. Thus, it is common to use proprietary fund reporting to accouflt for
services where the govemment intends to recover only a portion ofits costs through fees

or user charges.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the GWIS, but in more detail.

Notes to B&tic Financial Stolerrrenls

The NBFS provide additional information that is essential for a full understandiflg ofthe data
provided in the GWIS and GFFS. The NBFS can be found immediately following the basic
financial statements,

Other S applementa4, Inlormatiot

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of other supplementary infomaiion
consisting of: (1) budgetary comparison schedule - general fund and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards.

This Space Has Been InlentionallJ) Left Blank
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MUNICTPALITY OF AIBONITO
COMMONWEALTH OT PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2011

FINAIICIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS

The Municipality's overall financial position and operations for the prior and the current fiscal
year are summarized as follows, based on the information included in the accompanying CWFS:

Condensed Statement ofNet Assets

Govemmental Activities

Jun€ 30,2011 and 2010

2011 2010

,4rsers.'

Current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Long-term obligations due within one year

Long-term obligations due after one 5 ear

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficil):
Invested in capital assets, net ofdebt
Restricted

Unrestricted, as restated

Total net assets

g 21,254,045 17,148,903

36,832.666

420,841

37.462.110

431.67',7

59,148,192 54,402,4t0

4,430,859

1,018,834

4,005,232
'722,701

11,591,21915,719,788

21.139.181

3t,279,639
'7,208,248

(s29,176)

$ 37,958,711

16,32s,152

33,013,200

5,886,265
(822,20'/)

$ 38,077,258

At June 30,2011, the Municipality's current assets, amounting to $21,254,045, are mainly
composed of cash and cash equivalents ($18,602,210), accounts receivable ($2,625,836), net of
reserve for doubtfxl accounts ard other assets ($25,939).

The restricted cash represents resources legally designated for: (l ) the payment of debt service,
(2) the acquisition, construction and improvement of major capital assets, and (3) the operations

offederally and state funded grant programs. Restricted cash also consists of unspent proceeds of
bonds issued for acquisition, construction and improvement ofmajor capital assets. Rest cted

properry taxes receivable represent resources set aside to redeem the bonds ofthe Municipality in

minimum annual or biannual principal and interest payments-

The Municipality's non-current assets, amount;ng to $3?,894,147 at June 10, 2011, are composed

of capital assets, with a cost basis of $53,743,211, which are reported net of accumulated

10



MUNICTPALITY o[ AIBoNrro
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

depreciation and amortization of S16,280,741 and other noncurent assets, amounting to

$43t,67'1.

At June 30,2011, the Municipality's current liabilities amounting to $5,449,693 are mainly

composed of accounts payable and accrued liabilities ($2,351,531), uneamed revenues

($2,079,328), and the portions due wilhin one year ($1,018,834) of bonds and notes payable and

compensated absences. Uneamed revenues p ncipally consist of unearned revenues associated

with municipal license taxes and intergovemmental grants and contributions related to state and

federally funded grant programs.

The Municipality's non-current liabilities, amounting to $15,739,788 at June 30, 2011, 6re mainly

composed of portions due after one year of bonds and noted payable ($15,060,665) compensated

absences ($659,838) and other liabilities ($19,285)

As noted earliet net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Municipality's
financial position. The assets ofthe Municipality exceeded liabilities by $37,958,711 at June 30,

2011. The most significant portion of net assets ($31,279,639) reflects the Municipality's
investment;n capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, fumiture, fixtures,

inliastructure, etc.), net ofail related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire, construct or

improve those assets. The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to its

citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Municipality's investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related deb! the

resources needed to rcpay that debt must be provided by other sources, since caPital assets cannot

be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another significant portion of net assets ($7,208,248) at June 30, 2011, represents resouces that

are restricted for debt service payments, capital projects and other purposes.

The rcmaining component of total net assets consists of un.estricied net liabilities amounting to

$529,176 at June 30, 20i1. These unrestricted net liabilities are the consequence of previous

budgets that did not Fovide sufficient funding for incurred long-term obligations, such as bonds

and notes payable, compensated absences, claims andjudgments, cetain obligations under capital

Ieases, etc. Historically, a significant portion of such obligations has been budgeted on a pay-as-

you-go basis.

The total net assets offte Municipality increased by $3,217,532 during the fiscal year ended June

30, 2011.

This Space Has Been Intentionall! Lelt Blenk

11



MUNICIPALIY oF AIBONITo
COMMoNWEALTH oT PUf,RIo IICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2011

The following is a condensed presentation ofthe Municipality's results of operations as reported
in the CWIS:

Conde[sed Statement of Activiti€s
Governm€ntal and Busiless-Type Activities
Fiscal Years f,rded June 30,2011 and 2010

201r 2010

Progmm revenues:
P.ogram-specifi c operating $ants and contributions

Program-specific capital grants and contributions

Charges for services

Total progmm revenues

Geneml revenues:

Property taxes

Municipal license taxes

Construction excise taxes

Sales and rlse tax

Unrestricted grants and cont ibutions
Interest on deposits

Other general revenues (various sources)

Total geneml revenues
Total revenues

Program expenses:

General govemment

Urban and economic development

Health and sanitation

Public safety

Public housing and welfare

Culture, rccrcation and education

Interest on long-term obligations

Total expenses

Net increase in net assets

Net assets, at beginning offiscal year

Prior-period adj ushnents

Net assets, at beginning offiscal year, as reststed

Net assets, at end of fiscal year

$ 3,574,734

1,530,840

76,852

1,580,960

1,0,14,039

89,474

5,182,426 2,114,473

1.020.E64

10,647,551-----1iTigfrT

3,311,151

1,437.t56
386,777

610,077

4,3t8,62t
619,803

204,927

10,948,512-----17@9s-

2.,',|33,968

1,793,839

332,059

6t6,652
3,812,470

331,699

3,769,822

5,411,768

359,544

102,538

t,292,067

|,184,632
492,014

3,062,598

4,',703,436

11,'792

I16,901

1,616,7',71

789,5',76

317,899

t2,6t2.445 10,618,976

3,2t',7,532

38,077,258

(3,336,079)

34,74t,179

s 37,958,711

3,044,009

35,033,249

35,033,249

38.077,258

As previously mentioned, the Municipalit-v's nei assets increased by $3,217,532 duriag the
current fiscal year. Approximately 35% ofthe Municipality's total revenues for the current fiscal
yezr came from propery, municipal license, construction excise taxes and sales and use taxes
($5,476,518). Grants, contributions and charges for services (program revenues), amounting to
$8,99,1,896, provided 57% of the total revenues for the current fiscal year. Miscellaneous
revenues and interest on deposits provided the remaining 8% oftotal revenues.
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MUNICIPALTTY oF AIBoNITo
CoMMoNVEALTH or Puf,RTo RICo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
FiscalYear Ended June 30,201I

The Municipality's expenses cover a wide range of services. The largest expenses of the
Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 were related to: (l) urban and economic
development ($5,411,768), (2) general adminisrating and operating costs (93,769,822) which
were classified as "geneml govemment", (3) public housing and welfare ($1.292,067), (4)
culture, recrcation and education ($1,184,632), (5) interest on long-rerm obligations ($492,074),
(6) health and sanitation ($159,544), and (7) and prblic safety (S102,538). These expenses
include depreciation and amortization ofcapital assets in the amounts of $1,610,225 for the fiscal
year ended June 30,2011.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GO}'f,RI\MENTAL FT]IDS

A aljsis of Findncial Posilioh of Goverhrnenlal Funils

As discussed ea.lier, the Municipality uses fund accounting ao ensure and d€monstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Municipality's
goverrunental firnds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's compliance
with finance-related ]egal requirements. Specifically, unrcserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of the Municipality's net resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal
yeaf-

At June 30,2011, the total assets of govemmental funds amounted to $24,500,632, which
consisted principally of: (l) cash and cash equivalents of $18,525,086 (2) accounts receivable,
$2,621,844, net of reserve for doubtful accounts, and (i) inter-fund receivables of 93,j53,702.
Such assets are restricted for debt service, capital projects, encumbrances and other specific
purposes.

At June 30,2011, the total liabilit;es of govemmental funds amounted to $8,130,594, which
consisted principally of: (1) accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $2,327,564, (2) deferred
rcvenues of $2,079,328, (3) inter-fund payables ($3,353,702) and (4) matured bonds due and
payable of$370,000.

This Space Has Been Intentionally Left Blank
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
COMMONWTALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

The firnd balances of govemmental tunds increased by $6,781,289 during the

June 30,201l.
fiscal year ended

Condensed Bala[ce Sheet - Goveramental Funds
Jun€ f0, 2011 and 2010

2011

21,383,951

3,1r6,68r

Assels:

Total assets - major govemmental funds

Total assets - other govemmental funds

Combined total assets

Liabilities:
Total liabilities - major govemmental funds

Total liabilities - olher govemmental funds

Combined total liabilities

Fund balnhces:

Assigned or.estricted - major govemmental funds

Assigned or restricted - other govemmental funds

Unassigned - all govemmental funds

Combined total lund balances

Total liabililies and fund balarrces

2010

1',7,272,3t1

2,833,226

24,500,632 20,105,537

6,938,965

1,191,629

6,2',73,t26

907,583

8.110,59.1 7,180,709

14,i58,020

1.925,052

86.966

t1,240,90',7

1,925,643

(241,722)

12,924,82816,370,038

21.500.632

Major Governmental Funds

ceneral fund (GFl - The GF is the principal operating fund ofthe Municipality. The GF's total
assets amounted to $6,419,541 at June 30, 20i l. Such assets consist principally of: (l) cash and

cash equivalents ($3,646,691), (2) propen)_ tax, municipal license tax, construction excise tax,

sales and use tax, and intergovemmental grants and contributions receivable ($2,147,898), and (3)

shot-term and long-term amounts due fiom otherfunds ($624,952).

The GF's total liabitities amounted to $5,671,457 at June 30, 201l. Such liabilities are composed

mainly of: (i) intergovemmental payables ($1,188,345), (2) defened revenues ($1,078,710), (3)

accounts payable and accrued liabilities (676,364), and short-term and long term amounts due to

other firnds ($2.728,038).

At the end ofthe cunent fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the GF amounted to $86,966,

while total fund balance amounted to $748,084.

Capital proiects fund (CPF) - The CPF'S total assets amounted to $9,410,557 at June 30, 20i 1,

which consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents ($9,147,880), intergovemmental gants and

contributions receivable ($230,602) and accrued interest on deposits ($32,075). The CPF'S total

Iiabilities amounted to $585,094 at June 30, 2011, which are mainly comPosed of accourts
payable and accrued liabilities ($171,115) and short{em and long-term amounts due to other

14



MTNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
COMMONWT'ALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year End€d June i0,201 I

funds ($413,979). At the end ofthe curent fiscal year, CPSF'S total restricted fund balance

reached $8,825,463.

Debt service futrd fl)SFl- The DSF'S total assets amounted to $2,460,957 at June 30, 201l,
which consist mainly of restdcted cash in fiscal agent ($2,404,744), restricted property taxes

receivable, net of reserve for doubtful accounts ($6,193), intergovernmental gants and

contributions receivable and others ($,19,869). The DSF's total liabilities amounted to $661,777

at June 30, 201 l, which are mainly composed of: (1) matured bonds and interests due and payable

($370,000), (2) accounts payable and accrued liabilities ($291,740), (3) and due to other funds
($37).

Leeislative ioint resolutions fund (IJRF) - The LJRF's total restricted assets amounted to

$3,092.896 at June 30. 201l, which consist of cash in a commercial bank ($2,263,745), due from

other funds ($826,803) and accrued interest on deposits ($2,3,18). At the end ofthe cur.ert fiscal
year, URF's total fund balance is $3,072,259.

Other sovenrme[tal funds (OGtr)- The OGF'S total assets amounted to $3,1]6,681 at June 30,

2011, which consist mainly of restricted cash and cash equivalents ($1,062,026), due from other
funds ($1,901,947), intergovemmental grants and contributions ($152,636), and accrued interest

receivable ($72). The OGF'S total liabilities amounted to $1,191,629 at June 30, 2011, which are

mainly composed of deferred revenues ($1,000,618) and short-term and long-term amounts due

to other tunds ($ I 91 ,0 1 1 ).

This Spuce Has Been Intentionalh) Left Blank
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MUNICTPALITY OF AIBONTTO

CoMMONEEALTH OT PUERTO RICO
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2011

Anolysis of Operaling Resalls oJ Gover nental Fut ds

Cotrdensed Stat€metrt of R€vetrues, f, xpenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Governmental fudds
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2011 atrd 2010

2011 2010

Revenues:

Total revenues - maior governmental flInds

Total revenues - other govemmental funds

Combined total revenues

Expenditures:

Total expenditures - major govemmental funds

Total expenditures - other govemmental funds

Combined total expenditues

DeJicie cy ofrerenues under erpendilules

Other fntorcing sources. net:

Other financing sources, net ' major

govemmental funds

Other financing tlses, net - other

govemmental funds

Combined other financing sources (uses), net

Excess (deJiciency) ofrerenues and other

frnoncitxg sources over (wder) expe dilwes
dnd other financing uses

Fund balance, at begin ing offiscal year

P or-period adjusmenls

Fad balance, at beginning oflscal yar (restated)

Fund balance, at end oJfiscal ye.rr

15.278,310 13,130,429

t4,739,238
539,092

12,',t44,t92

386,23',7

12.741,653

605,388

9,356,803

35?.333

13,347,041

1,931,289

4,851,379

( 1,3 79)

4,850,000

9,7 t4,136

3,416,293

28,904

(28,904)

6,781,289

12,924,828

(3,336,079)

9,588,749

16,370,038

9,508,535

$ 12,924,828

3,416,293

9,s08,53s
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MUNICIPALITY oT AIBoNITo
CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUERTo IUco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

Maior Govemmental Funds

GgElgLlEg! - The total fund balance of the GF increased by $302,610 during current fiscal
yeaf.

Approximately 50% ($4,987,357) of the GF's total rcvenues fo, the cufient fiscal year came fiom
property, municipal license, construction excise tzxes and sales and use taxes, while 38%
($3,812,470) resulted from intergovemmental gmnts and contributions.

The largest expenses of the CF for the fiscal year ended June 3 0, 20 I I were related to: ( I ) general
administrating and operating costs ($3,523,199), (2) construction, rehabilitation and preservatio.
of new or existing housing, ($4,008,354), which were classified as "urban and economic
development, (3) culture, re$eation and education ($1,181,064), (4) health and sanitation
($359,3s9), and (5) capital outlay ($491,571).

Capital proiects funds (CPF) - The total firnd balance of the CPF increased by $4,452,536
during curent fiscal year. CPF'S total revenues for the current fiscal year came from
intergovemmental grants and contributions amounting to $'735,672 and accrued interest on
deposits amounting to $172,326. CPF'S total expenditures forthe current fiscal year were mainly
related to capital outlays, ($923,537) and public housing and welfare ($145,313).

D€bt service furd (DSF) - The total fund balance of the DSF increased by $240,284 during
current fiscal year. Approximately $489,161 of DSF'S total revenues for the current fiscal year
came from restricted property taxes. DSF'S total expenditures for the curent fiscal year came
from principal and interests on bonds payable ($893,079).

Lesislative ioint resolutions fund CJRF) - The total fund balance of the LJRF increased by
$1,853,534 during current fiscal year. LJRF'S total revenues for the current fiscal year came
principally from state legislative assignments and contributions amounting to $2,64'7,755 and
interest on deposits amounting $21,584. LIRI'S total expenditures for the current fiscal year
came from capital outlay ($815,805).

Other govertrmental funds (OGF) - Substaniially all of OGF'S revenues for the current fiscal
year came from intergovemmental grants and contributiofls of $53i,920 and interest on deposits
of$5,172. Total expenditures were mainly related to public housing and welfare ($412,479) and
general administration ($1 92,909).

FINAI{CIAL ANAIYSIS OF BUSINtrSS-TYPtr ACTIVITTOS

Analysis of Financidl Position of Proprietary Fund

At June 30, 2011, the total assets of proprietary fund amounted to $2,440,538, which consisted
principally of: (l) restricted cash in commercial banks ($77,184), (2) capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation ($1,923,?96), and other assets ($435,566).

At June 30,2011, the total liabilities of the proprietary fund amounted to $908,460, which
consisted principally of: (l) mortgage notes payable of$865,208, and (2) accounts payable and
accrued liabil ities of $43,252.

t7



MUNICTPALITY OF AIBONITO
CoMMoNWEALTII ot PUERTo RIco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2011

The total resmcted ret assets of proprietary firnd amounted to $1,532,078 at June 30, 2011, of
which $1,058,588 are inv€sted in capital assets, and $473,490 are reserved for progam activities.

The following table presents a summary of the financial position of the proprietary fund (PF) at

June 30,2011:

AsseB:

Total current assets

Total non-curent assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Total current liabilities

Total noo-cunent liabilities

Total liabilities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for federal funded program

Tolal festricled rct assels

Unrestricled ne, assels

Total et assels

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRA.TION

85,065

2.440,538

105,645

802,8r5

908,460

1,058,588

411,757

t,410,345

61,733

1,532,078

a)

b)

Capital Asset3

The Municipality has invested $48,579,655 in capital assets used in govemmental activities,

which have an accumulated deprec;ation and amortizalion of $ I 1,040,98 I at June 30, 20 I 1 .

The net capital assets increased during the current fiscal year due to the current fiscal year's

capital additions ($789,866), which were partially offset by the depreciat;on and amortization

Debt Admiristratiotr

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its consfuction activilies through bond and

note issuances, and through state and federal grants. The pmceeds from bond issuances

designated for construction activities are committed in its entirety lor such purposes and

cannot be used for any other purposes.

At June 30, 2011, the Municipality's total bonded debt amounted to $14,556,616 consisting

of bonds payable. Such debt is backed by the full faith and credil ofthe Municipality. The

Municipaiity has also certain outstanding notes payable. Such notes payable also decreased

18



MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO I{CO

Managemenl's Discussion and Anal)sis
FiscalYear Ended June 30,2011

du ng the current fiscal year mainly due to the principal payments made during the same

- period.

REQI]EST FOR INTORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe Municipality's finances for
all ofthe Municipality's citizens, ta-xpayers, customers, investors and creditors. This financial

- 
report seeks to demonstmte the Municipality's accountabilig- for the money it receives.

- Questions conceming any ofthe information provided in this report or requests for additional
infomation should be addressed to: Municipality ofAibonito, DePartment ofFinance.
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COMMON\YEALTH oT PLf,RTo RICO
MU\ICIPALITY oF AIBo\ITo

Statement ofNet Assets
June 10,201 I

Assets

Current assets:

Cash in corunercial banks

Accomts rcceivable, mt ofallowance for
doDhtfui aeomtsr

Property t&xes

Municipal license taxes

Conslruction excise taxes

Sales and use taxes

Intergov€mmental grants and contributions
Restricted assets:

Cash in commercial bank
Cash in fiscal agent

Accounts rec€ivable:

Property taxes receivable, net ofallowance
for doubttul accounrs

Acoued interests on deposits

Intergovemmental granis and contributions
Other receivables

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Capital assets:

Depreciable capital assets, net of ac.umulated
deEeciation of$13,040,981 and S 3,239.760 for
goverfinental and business-tlpe activities,
respectively

NoFdepredable capital assets

Other assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

actirities
Business-t"ype

adivities Total

s 3,646,69r $ 3,646,691

1,009,994

7,0r 8

14,542
16,378

t,099,966

3,048,463
11,829,932

6,193
34.646

433,107

22.O50

,rJ6&r80
3,889

85,065

1,009,994

7,0r8
14,542

t6,378
1,099,966

3,125,647
1t,829,932

6,193
34,646

433,107

21,254,045

11,184-

35,5i8,67,1

$ 56,707,654

1.79',7,616

126,150

431.67 7

,,440J3S

2i,326,513
16,1t5,927

13 t,67',1

37,89.1,i47

$ 59.148.r92

19,528,897

t6,009.1'77

The accanpanying notes to the basic fndncial statenents ate an integal pan of this statenent.
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CoMMoNWEALTH OF PUERTO IUCO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Slatement of Net Assets (concluded)
June 30, 2011

Liabiliti€s and net ,sset!

Curent liabilities (due within one year):
Ac€ounts payable:

Trade payables

lntergovemmental payables

Accrued liabilities:
Acc.ued interests on bonds and notes payable

Uneamed rcvenu€s

Curre portion of long-tefil obligations:

Bonds payable

Notes payabie

Compensaied absences

Total curent liabilities

Non-current liabilities, excluding current portion
(due in more than one Year) :

Bonds payable

Notes payable

Compensated absences

Other liabilities
Total non-cutrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets (liabilities):
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt

Restnct€d for:
Debt s€rvice

Capital projects

Other purposes

Total restricted

UDrestricted
Total net assets

activities
Business-type

activities Total

841,479
1,r 88,145

291,740
2,019,328

370,000
34,088

23,967 871,446
r,188,345

29t,',740

2,079,328

370,000
115,766
533,068

81.678

533,068

5,344,048

14,186,616
90,5 t9

6s9,838_

14,936,973

20.2a102t

30,221,051

1,799,180

4,997,311
6,196.491
(590,909)-$ 36-3x=ft

r05,64i s,449,693

7S3,53;

r9,285
802,815

908,460

1,058,588

400-925

r0.832

14,186,616

8',74,049

659,838
19,285

15,739,788

21,189,48I

31.279.639

1,799,I80
400,925

5.008,143

7,20a.248
(529.116)

$ 37,958,711

4t1.',l5'l

The acconpanying noter to the basiclinancial statements arc dn ituegral pdi ofthis state ent
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COMMOI\ryEALTH OF PUERTO fuCO
MUNICIPALITY OT AIBONITO

Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Fun.rions/progmms $ 1,610,225

ProgBm -
ip.ci fic

Chlrgcs operrring
for grlnts and

seni.€s cotrrrib.tiotrs acriviti.s Tottl

iove tuehto| lctivities:
- crneral go"emment

Urb6n ed economic {Gvelopment

Eedhh dd@nalion

Public ho6ing ad *lfare
Cultue- tecrealion and edeatio.

- Interestson lonc-tem oblieEiions

Toral Aoremmenial aclivnies

j,769,822

5,411,768

159,54,1

102,518

791.549

1,181,632

436,210

1,852,58?

533.92;

642.89i

79t,168

135,672

$ (1,047,572)

(4,675,096)

(359,544)

(r02,538)

1263.629)
(r,181,612)

206,66)

$ (1,0,17,572

(4,616,096

(j59,i44
(r02,538

(263,629
(l.r84.632

206,66i

74,,195

12,062,083 1,029,198 1,510,8,10 (1,421.350) (?,427,150

-tusiae*qpe 
a.liitks:

?ublic boBing ad wlfde,
including inieresl on Iodg{em
obligatiors of$55,844 i50 362 2.157 j.1,i.ll6 (2,669) (2,669

Toral btsin.setype &iiviiies $ 550,162 2,35',l 5.,15,1i6 (2,669) $ (2,669

c.n€lal revenGs:

Tdcs:
Property laes
M@iciPal lietre t €s

Constr&lion excie tdes
gtes dde laes

Totaltu revenEs

lnte.Cpvefrnental gruts {d ontribui iotrs,

not r.slricied lo specific Ptogrus
Interest on d.posits

Mi$eltoeoB
Tolal gEn.ral rcvenEs

Ner ,ncree in net 8$rs
Ner 3sts ar beernning oifi$al yod
Piior psiod adjurtnent
Net asrs at b.grtrningoffi*al yer as re$aled

Net Nts at end of fieal yea

he accodpdnyinE soks b the basi.financi.l sbte enlt are qn i"teqrul Pan ol h is notenent.

$ 2,733,968

1.793,839

332,059

616,652

$ 2,733,968

1,793,839

:132,0t9

616,652

5,476,518 5,476,5r 8

t,812,470

331,699

1,016,910

- 3,412,410

- 331.699

3,954 1,020,864

10,6,1i,597 3,9i4 10,64?,551

3,2t6,241 1,285 3,217,5)2
36,546,465
(3.336.079)

1,530.793 34,O77.254
(3,336,079

33.2 t0,386 1,530,793 34,141.|',19

s 36.426,6i3 $ 1,512,078 $37,958,711
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COlttNIOxwEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MuNlctPALITv oF AIBoNITo
Balance Sheet - Covernmental Funds

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2011

Assets

Cdh in conme.cial tanks, including

Ac.. 
'hr 

s reeivable- net of allowce
for <loutxtul aeoels

M6icipal licen* ta\es
Corstrelion excis tdes
Sales 6dN taxes

r nrereovemmmial grml s and onlribu ions

D@ from othe. gove.nmenial fm<b

Casn in commercia, b.nks

Aer*d interees on deposils

DE from ot her eoverniental f@&
lntereovemmental grels dd conlribinions
Prop.ny rdes reeivable, net ofresfre

for &,uh ful &counts

Liabiliries
Acco@ts payable and accrEd liabililies:

Trad. payables dd accred liabilil ies

Ini€rcover.nenlal payables

De to orhei eovernmental fu&

Matued bonds <l't and pa) able

Matued interest <lG ad payable

51.646.691

52.539
9,095,34!

32,015-

230,602

2,263.745-

2344
826.803

2.404,74;
l5t

49.869

6,193

225.\96

5o;

506,983
329,447

12

1,901,445
152,636

$ 3-646,691

I,009,994
7,018

'14.542

16,i78
|,099,966

621,952

3,048.463
11.829,932

34,646
2,728,750

433,1O7

6, t93

t.o09,994
7.0t8

14,5,12

t6.378
1,099,966

624.942

725.694 2.890,983 $ 24.500,6i2

676.364
1.188,i45
2.?28_038

1,0?8,710

r 7l,l l5

413.979 20,63',1

29t.140

3't

370,00;

,r,,or i
715,694

r,rt9,2l9
1,r88,145
3,353.702
2,019.328

3?0,000

5,6?l,,l5l ia5.09il 966.70i 8.ll0.i9l

Fu nd bala.ces

Tolal I md tElances (deficils)

- Total liabilit ies md iEd bolances

661, t l8
86.966

661,1l8
86'966

- 8,825.463 3.072,259 1.799,180 ,'11 '1.924-21A 15,621,95.1

74a,Oa4 8.A25-463 3-072.159 1,799.180 1,924,274 r6.l?0.018

lhe acconpan ing notd r. the basic Jinoncial statenents dre oh iktegral Pan o.f th is statenent.
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MT]NICIPALITY oT AIBoNITo

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 I

M. ior s.vemmenlll lunds

Orher To&l
governmeDt l aovemD.lt l

lund. fntrds

?ropeny Gx.s $ 2,2,r,{.807 J39.161 $ 2,71i,963

Municipallicense hes 1.793 339 - 1,791.339

conslruclron excise k6 3:12,059 312,059

Salesdduserdcs6166S2---616.652
Iotal r*r.venues ,1.937.157 , ,139.161 - - 5476.J13

Int€rgovemnhral grMb dd conribu.ors i,312.470 135.672 2.617.'155 542,39t 5ll,9r0 3.372,703

Interess on deposts 116,607 172,326 2!,531 1,010 t,3jl 1,120 337,599

Charges tirr seFlces 7,1,19t - 7.1,195

MscellMeous 1.016.910 ' ' ' - 1016910

Toralrcvenues 10.0r:7.339 907.993 2.669.1t9 1.l],1.062 t.3i2 537.2.10 1t.273.i10

Ccneml govemme.t 1,521,199 6i0 - 19?,909 1,716.713

Urbai and ecoiomrc devclopmenr 4,003,154 - 1,003,i54

H*lih and enrralion li9l59 159.i59
Public saaeq 99,590 - 99.i90
Public housi.C and \€lfare 2lj,7j2 l45,lll - 112.179 791,51-1

CBltuE, rccrealon deducation l,tgl,064 - t,lS1,06J
D€br -c^ .e
Debt ssue cos6 2:1,161 2l,t6l

Principal i,1,033 454,000 ,193,033

lntsEt 7,151 ,129.079 ,136,:10

Capidiounals 49l.j7l 923.537 815805 - - 2.230.9r:l

Toralexp.idrures 9.9,10,t23 1,092.641 315.305 391.079 605.333 13.147.041

Excess (defi ciency) oar6enu6
ovs (uds) exp€nditures) 37.711 (184.643) I.85i.534 240,981 l-852 (63,143) 1.911.239

oth.. litr.ftitrs eulc (us):
Prme€ds ft@ i$umce olbonds ed not6 , ,1,350,000 4,350,000

TtrsleB frcn othe. govemmrrl fmds 214.961 62 215,a23

Ttusfers ro othf goreonorrl tu.ds (62) (212,321) , (69) 11.078) 1363) (215.023)

Total otlErfimci.gsources (us), net 214.899 4.637.179 - (699) (1073) lr0l) .1.$i0 0m
Ner incr6e (dalte) in tundbolM.s 302.610 4,452.536 1.353,534 240.231 7?4 168.449) 6.731.239

Fud brlr@ .t tcgildtrg
oltslydr 514,868 7,706-6Ei 1,218,725 I,558,396 1,925,643 12,924,828

PrloFDertod .drGtIr. . (69.394) (1,133.769) - - - 62084 (3.336.079)

Fund t{L!c..r bqinrile
olli*arlear.a\6r.led \ _ 14rd7a 4l'2al' ,2 8':t .5588oo - t@27,7 o1g,4a

Ftrndh,r,nrps,.ndorrB.,rrc,. \ w $ I iis0s" ss2i
.,\\_,/

rhe a.. anpa^DE nat?, toth" b^,"1,",,."/,,","..,tr\,"\s$fo t ?d orths t,@.

ffi-"",""""*"'
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COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RTCO

MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
Reconciliation ofthe Balance Sheet Govemmental Funds to Statement ofNet Assets

June 30,2011

Business -
tvpe

Total

The amounts of governmental activities reported in the statemerfi of
net assets and the balance sheet - govemmental funds, are different
for the following reasons:

Total fund balances reporled in the balance sheet governrnental

funds

Add (Deduct):

Capital assets used in govemmental activhies are not considered

available financial resources at fiscal year-end, therefore, are

not rcported in the governmental ftmds. This is the carrying

amount of capital assets, net of accumuhted depreciation and

amortization of$13,040981 at June 30,201l.

Dett issued by the Municipality has ass$iated cost (debt

issuance costs) that are pail from current avaihble financial

resourses in the govemmental fimds- However, these costs are

defened in the statement of net assets and reported net of
accumuhted amortization of Sl,l I l.

The following liabilities are not due (rnature) in the current fiscal

year, therefore, are not reported in the govemmental funds at

.lune 30- 201l:

Bonds payable

Notes payable

Compensated absences

Net assets - governmental activities, as reported in the statement of

$ r6,370,038 $ 1,s32,078 $ 17,902,116

3s.s34.674 35,538574

22.050 22,050

( 14,1 86,6 r 6)

(124.60'7)

(l,192,906)

( r 4,186,6r O
(t24,607)

( 1,192,906)

$ 36.426.633 1.532.078 $ 37,958,711

The dccampatryiag otes to the basicfinancial statenehtt a.e ak integrul part ofthis statement
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COMMONryEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Reconciliation ofthe Statement ofRevenues, Expendiores and Changes in Fund Balances -
Govemmental Funds to Statement ofActivities

June 30, 2011

GovernmeIlal
Business -

type
activities Total

The amounts of govemmental activities

activities and the statement of revenues,

fund balances (deficits) - govemmental

following reasons:

reported in the statement of
exp€nditures and changes in
funds. are different for the

Total net increase in fund balances reported in the statement of
revenues, exp€ndifures and changes in fund balances govemmental

funds
Add (Deduct):

covemmental funds report capital outlays ($2,230,913) as

expenditures. However in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as

depreciation and amortization expense.

$ 6,781,289

2.230,9t3

Govemmental funds report the proceeds lrom the issuance of
bonds ($4,850,000) as other financial sources, however, such

amounts are reported as an increase in bonds payable in the

statement ofnet assets. (4,850.000)

1,285 $ 6,782.514

Governmental funds do oot report depreciation expeose

($1,441,047) as expenditure, however, such amounts are reported

in the statement ofactivities.

Repalment of principal of long-term obligations is repofied as

expenditure in the govemmental funds; however, the repayment

reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

The following expenses reported in the statement of activities do

not require the use of current available financial resourses,

therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Net change in deferred charges (debt issue costs )
Net change in accrued compensated absences

(1,441,047)

,r98,088

2,230,9t3

(4,850,000)

(1 ,411 ,04',7\

498,088

22,050

(25,046)

22,050

(2s,046\

$ 3,217,532
Net increase (decrease) in net assets, as reported in statement

ofactivities _9_:]16241_

The dcconparting nates to the basiclnancial statenents are on in egral part afthis statement-
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COMMONWf, ALTH OF PUf, RTO RICO
MUNICIPALTTYOF AIBONITO

Statement ofNet Assets
Proprietary Fund

June 30,2011

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Restricted Assets

Current ass€ts:

Restricted assets:

Cash in €ommercial banks

Tenants accounis receivable
Other assets

Total curent assets

Non-current assets:

Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulaaed

depreciation of $3,239,760
Non-depreciable capital assets

Total capital assets

Other assets

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Liabilities aod fund net assets

Current liabilities (due within one year):

Accounts payables and accrued liabilities,
including acoued interests of$...

Cunent portion ofmortgage noies payable

Total clmeot l;abilities

Non-current liabilities. excluding currenl ponion
Tenan6' security deposits

Mortgage notes payable du€ in more than one year

Total non-cunent liabilities
Total liabilities

Fund tret assets:

lnvested in capihl assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted for:

Capital proiects

Other purposes

Total restricted

Total net asse6

Las Flores Apartments
FmHA aod Hud Project
No. 63-00s-660-43-3572

s 77,184
I OO)

3,889

1,79',7.646

126,150
1.923.796

131.6i',7

2.155.,173-T----T,a-4O3ff

s 23,967

81,678
105,645

19,285

783,530
802,8I5
908,460

1,058,588

400,925

10,832
.111.757

6r.733-r-L5l,37r
The acconpanying notes to the basicrnancial statenents arc an integal par, afthis statenent
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CoMMoNWEALTH oF PUERTo RICo
MUNICTPALTTYOF AIBONITO

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 I

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Oper.tiog revenues:
Charges for services - renial income fiom tenants

lntergovemmental granls and conaibutions -
tenants assistance parments from u.s.
Departnent ofHousing and Urban Development

Mhcellaneous
Total operaling revenues

Operating expens€s:

ceneral and administrative
utilities
Maintenance

Interest on mortg€e notes Payable
Depreciation of carital assets

Total operaling expenses

Operating income

Net rssets at beginning offiscrl ye.r
Net assets at end of fiscal year

Las Flores Apartmetrts
FmHA and HUD Pro.iect
No. 63-005660-43-3572

$ 2,357

545,336
1454

-- 
551,64i

171,042
'7,t24

106,640

40,534

55,84.1

169.178

550.i62

$ 1,i32,078

The acconpaiying note: ta the basic fnancial statenents are an integral Pa oI thk statenent
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COMMONWEALTH OT PUERTO IUCO

MUNICTPALITY OF AIBONITO

Statement of Cash Flows
Propdetary Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net decrease in net a5sets

Depreciation exp€nse

Increase in accounts receivable - tenants, net

Decrease in prepaid insurance

Increase in deposit held by trust

Decrease in accounts payable and accmed expenses

Deoease in accrued interest

Increase in d€posit tenants security

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows Irom investing actiYitiesl
Inffease in reserve for replacement

lncrease in escrow account

Increase in building improvements

lncrease in building equipment

lncrease in ofiice equipment

Net cash used in invesling activities

Cash flows from financing actiYities:
Decrease in moagage payable

Net cash used by financing activities

Net decrease in cash

Cash iu commercial banks at beginning ofyear

Cash in commercial banks at end ofy€ar

Business-Typ€ Activities -
Enterprise Fond_

Las Flores Apartments
FmHA ,nd HUD Project
No. 63-005-660-43-3572

$ 1,285

169,178
(1,s60)

197
(117)

(7,949\
(5,115)

4t7

(5,8s9)
(4,560)

(600)
(4,862)
(j.65s)

(19.s36)

(78.671)
(78.614)

57,606

19,578

816r55

184

The acconparrying nates to the basic linancial statenents arc an integral ptt ofthis statement
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
COM IONWEALTH OF PUERTORICO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30.201I

l. Summary of Signilicant Accouoti[g Policies

The Municipality of Aibooito, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Municipality), is a local

municipal govemment constituted in 1824 in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The

Municipality has full legislative. fiscal and all other govemmental powers and responsibilities

expressly assigned by Law No. 8l of August 10, 1991, as amended, kno\Nl as Autonomous

Municipalities Act of the Comno weahh of Puerro Rr?o (Act No. 81). The Municipaliry is

one of seventy-eight municipal governments legally separated from the state govemment of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth).

The Constitution of the Commonwealth provides for the separation of powers of the
executive, legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities.
However, the Municipality's govemmental system consists of executive and legislative
branches only. A Mayor, elected every four years by the citizens, exercises the executive

power of the Municipality. The legislative power of the Municipality is exercised by the

Municipal Legislatue, whose members are also elected every four years. The judiciary

power is exercised by the Geneml Justice Court System of the Commonwealth, which has

jurisdiction over the Municipality.

The Municipality assumes either partial or full responsibility for providing services to its
citizens related to public housing, welfare, public safety, health, sanitation, education, cultur€,

rcueation, urban dev€lopment, economic development, and many other fiscal, general and

administrative services.

^) Findnc rl Reporting Model

The accompanying basic financial statemenls present the financial position of the

govemmental activities, the business-O?e activities, each major govemmental and

proprietary firnds, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipali8 at
June 30, 2011, in conformity with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the

United States of America (GAAP), as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). In addition, the accompanying basic financial statements

present the changes in the financial position (results of operations) of the governmeDtal

activities, the business-type activities, each major govemmental and proprietary funds,

and the aggrcgate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, in
conformity with GAAP. Furthermore, the basic financial statements refered to above

present the cash flows ofthe business-type activities (proprietary fund) for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2011 in conformity with GAAP.

According to the financial reporting model estabiished by GASB StatementNo. 34, Basr'c

Financial Sk tements and Mandgement's Discttssion and Analysis for State and Local
Govern ents (GASB No. 34), the required basic financial statement presentation

applicable to the Municipality is composed of the following elemen.s: (1) govemment-

wide financial statements (GWFS), (2) govemmental and Proprietary fund financial
statements (PFS), (3) notes to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplementary

information (RSI).

31



b)
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COMMON\YEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30.2011

-RSI coNists ofi (1) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and (2) a

budgetary comparison schedule - Seneral fund. RSI is uoaudited suPPlementary

information required by CAAP presented aloog with, but sepamte from, the

Municipality's basic financial statements.

MD&A 1s a nafiative rcport that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements

and provides an analltical overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, based on the Municipality's knowledge of the

transactions, events and conditions reflected in the basic financial statements. The

MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies that control the Municipality's
operations.

In addition to the required financial reporting requirements referred to above, the

accompanying basic financial statements are accompanied by additional supplementary

infomation coDsisting of a budgetary comparison schedule debt service fund and the

notes to the budgetary comparison schedule - debt service fund, which have been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the accompanying basic

financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,201l.

On March 2009, the Municipality adopted the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 55, Ile
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles fot State ond Local Govemments
(CASB 55), and GASB Statement No.56, Codifrcation of Accounting a d Financial
Reporting Guida ce Contained in the AICPA Stdtements on Auditi g Stdndddr (GASB

s6).

GASB 55 inco.porated the hierarchy ofgenerally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
for state and local govemments into the Govemmental Accounting Slandards Board's
(GASB) authoritative literature. The requirements in this Statement codify all GAAP for
state and Iocal govemments so that they derive from a single source.

GASB 56 incorporated into the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB)

authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in
the Atnerican Institute ol Certified Public Accountants' Statements on Auditing
Standards. This Statement addressed three issues not inciuded in the authoritative
literature that establishes accounti g principles-related party transaclions, going

concem colsiderations, and subsequent events.

The adoption of GASB 55 and GASB 56 did not have retroactive cumulative effects

affecting the accompanying fmancial statements as ofJuly 1, 2009, and have not affected

the financial positions and the results ofoperations reported as ofand for the fiscal year

ended June 30,2011. Accordingly, the accompanying GFFS have not reported any

retroaciive restaiements or reclassifications of fund equities as of July I , 2 0 I 0.

F inancial Rep ofi ing E ntiu

The accompanying basic financial statements

municipal operational units that arc under the
include all departments, agencies and

legal and administrative control of the
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2011

Mayor, and whose financial resources are under the legal custody and conhol of the

Municipalify's Di.ector ofFinance, a5 prcscribed by Act No. 81.

The accompanying basic financial statements include the financial statements of Las

Flores Apartrnents (FmtlA and HUD Project No. 6i-005-660-43-3572), an opemtional

unit and a business-type activity (proprietary fund) ofrhe Municipality which singl€ audii

report reflect total assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses of$2,440,538,

$908,460, $1,532,078, $551,647 and $550,362, respectively, as ofand for the fiscalvear

ended June 30, 2011. The financial position, results ofoperations and cash flows oflas
Florcs Apartments as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are reported in the

accompanying statement of net assets prop etary fxnd, the statement of.evenues,

expenaes and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund, and the statement of cash

flows - proprietary fund, respectively.

Las Flores Apartments is a housing development project consisting ofone-hundred (100)

dwelling units located in Aibonito- The project is owned by the Municipality, but its

operations are canied out by a pdvate management agent unr€lated to the Municipality.
The housing development project of Las Flores Apartments has been designed to ass;st

various segments ofthe Senera' public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental

housing. The project operates under financing through the Section 8 Housing Assistance

Program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The purpose of
Las Flores Apartments is to provide adequate housing to low-ilcome residents of the

Municipality. Separate audiled financial staiements of Las Flores Apartments can be

obtained directly from the management agent's offices at Villa Nevares Professional

Center, Suite 302, San Juan, Puerto Rico 00927.

On Juty 1, 2005, the Municipality adopted tho provisions of GASB Statemeni No. 39,

Determining lllhether Certoin Orgdnizalions are Co ponent Units an Amendme l of
GASB Statement No. ,44 (GASB No. 39). GASB No. 39 states that certain organizations

for which a primary govemmenr is not financially accountable nevertheless warant
inclusion as part ofthe financial reporting entity because ofthe nature and significance of
their relationship with the primary govemment, including their ongoing financial support

of rhe primar} govemment and its olhercomponent unit'.

According to GASB No.39, a legally sepamte, ta-\-exempt organization should be

reported as a discretely presented component unit of a reporting entity if all of the

following criteria are met:

. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely

or almosi entirely for the direct benefit of the primary govemment, its component

units, or its constituents.

. The pnmary govemment, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability
to otherwise access, a majority ofthe economic resources received or held by the

separate organization.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30.201l

. The economic resources received or held by an individual oBanization that the

specific primary govemment, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the

ability 1o otherwise access, are significant to that primary govemment.

In addition, GASB No. 39 states that other organizations should be evaluated as potential
component units if they are closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primary
govemment. Such types of entities may be presented as either blended or discretely
presented component units, depending upon how they meet the criteria for each specified
in GASB No. 14. The Municipalitr's management has concluded that, based on the

aforementioned criteri4 there are no legally separate entities or organizations that should

be reported as component units of the Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended

June 30,2011.

c\ Govemmenl-tyide Financial Slaterfients

The accompanying GWFS are composed of: (l) the statement of net assets and (2) the

statemeflt ofactivities. These financial statements rcport information ofall govemmental

and business-type activities ofthe Municipaiity as a whole. These statements are aimed

at presenting a broad overview of the Municipality's finances by reporting its financial
position and results of operations using methods that are similar to those used by most
private businesses,

The focus of G\VFS is on the operational accountability ofthe Municipality as a single

economic unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use

of available or currently expendable financial resources (rcferred to as fiscal
accountability). Operational accountabitity is the Municipality's responsib;lity to report
to the extent to which jt has met its opemting objectives e{frciently and effectively, using

all resources available for that purpose. It focuses on the Municipality's principal

operating objective. \ hich i5 lo pror ide services to it. citizens.

The accompanying statement of net assets prcvides short{erm and long-term information
about the Municipality's financial position by presenting all ofthe Municipality's assets

and liabilities, with the difference between these two items reported as "net asseis"

(equity) and/or net liabilities (accumulated deficit). This statement assists management in
assessing the level ofservices that can be provided by the Municipality in the future and

its ability to meet its obligations as they become due. In addition, this statement reports

the extent to which the Municipality has invested in capital assets and discloses legal and

contractual re$rictioN on resources-

Net assets (liabilities) are classified in the accompanyjng statement of net assets within
the following three categories:

. IEvested in capital assets, n€t of related debt This net asset category consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, .educed by the

outstanding balsnces of bonds payable, notes payable and other debts that are

attributed to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. For the

purposes of determiniog the outstanding debt attributed to capital assets, the total
long-term debt reiated to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital

34



MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

COMMONWf, ALTH OF PUERTO IUCO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30. 2011

assets has been reduced by any related unspent debt proceeds and any related

rmamortiz€d debt issuance costs.

Restricteal net assets - This net asset category consists of net resources restricted by

extemal parties (such as creditors, gmntors, conkibutors, laws or regulations ofother
govemmints, etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional

provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation consists of legislation that

authorizes the Municipalit) to assess, lerT, charge or otherwise mandate Pa)4nent of
resources (from extemal resouce providers). Enabling legislation establishes

rest ctions if it inciudes a legally enforceable requirement that those .esources be

used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

On July l, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of Statement No. 46, e/

Assets Resticted by Enabling Legislation (GASB No. 46). This Statement requires

that limitations on the use ofnet assets imposed by enabling legislation be repo ed as

restricted net assets. This Statement clarified that a legally enforceable enabling

legislation rest ction is one that a party extemal to the Municipaliry (such as citizens,

public interest groups, or thejudiciary) can compel the Municipality to honor. This

Statement states that the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation should be

reevaluat€d if any of the resources raised by the enabling legislation are used lor a

purpose not specified by the enabling legislation or if the Municipality has other

cause for consideration. Although the determination that a particular restriction is not

legally enforceable may cause the Municipality to review the enforceabilify of other

restrictions, it should not necessarily lead the Municipality to the same conclusion for
all enabling legislation restrictions-

The classification ofrest cted net assets identifies resources that have been received

or eamed by the Municipality wilh an explicit understanding between the

Municipality and the resource providen that the resources would be used for specific
purposes. Crants, contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of
conditions. Bond indentures also often limit the use of bond proceeds to specific

purposes.

Intemally imposed designations of resources, including earmarking, are not rcported

as restricted net assets. These designations consist ofmanagement's plans for the use

of rcsources, which are subject to change at the discretion of the Municipal

Legislature.

The Municipality has reported the following
accompanying statement of net assets:

types of restricted net assets in the

(1) Debt s€rvice - Represent net resources available to cover future debt service

payments of bonds payable.

(2) Capilal prcjects Represent net resources available to carry out several capital

project funds and the acquisition ofcapital assets.
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(3) Other p rposes - Represent net resources available from certain fedeml and

state grants, which have been set aside to carry out several prcgmms.

. Unrestricted - This category consists of the excess of liabilities over related assets

(accumulated deficit) that are neither extemally nor legally restricted, neither

invested in capital assets. However, assets rcported within unrestricted ner liabilities

often are designated to indicare that managemenl does not consider them to he

available for general operations. Assets reported within this category often have

constraints that are imposed by management but can be rcmoved or modified. When

both restricted and unrestricted resources arc available for use, it is the Municipaliry's
policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as

they are needed.

The accompan,ving statemeni of activities presents the Municipality's results of
operations by showing, how the Municipality's net assets or liabilities changed du ng the

fiscal year ended June 30,2011, using a net (expense) revenue format. This statement

prcsents the cost of each function/program as well as the extent to which each of the

Municipality's functions, programs or other sewices either contributes to ol dmws from

the Municipality's general revenues (such as property taxes, municipal license taxes,

consmrction excise taxes, etc.),

A function/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a

major service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/pro$ams reported in the

accompanying basic financial statements are: (1) general govemmen! (2) urban and

economic development, (3) public safety, (4) health and sanitation, (5) cultue, recreation

and education and (6) public housing and welfare. The govemmental operations ofthe
Municipality's departments and operational units are classified within the foliowing

functions/programs in the accompanying basic financial statements:

Generel governmetrt:
Municipal leg;slature
Mayor's office
Department of finance
Deparhnent of human resources

Department of municipal secretary
Department of intemal audit
Offi ce of communications
otnce of administrative services

Urban and economic development:
Department of public works
Department of planning and develoPment

Public safety:
Department of emergency management civil defense

Department of municipal police
Depa(ment of sanitation
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Health and sanit*tion:
Department of rec) cling services
Municipal enterprises
Department of health

Culture, recreatiotr and educalion:
Deparhnent of sports and recreation
Department of ar! culture and tourism

Public housing atrd welfare:
Depanmenr of citizen affairs

The statement of activities demonstrates the degrce to which prograrn revenues offset

direct expenses of a given functior/program or segrnents. Direct expenses are those that

are clearly identifiable with a specific function, segment or oPerational unit. This

statemenl reports revenues in three broad categories: (l) program revenues, (2) general

revenues and (3) special items.

Progtdm rcwnues arc generated directly from a program itselfor may come from parties

outside the Municipality's ta-xpayers or citizens. ID the statement of activities, program

revenues reduce the costs (expenses) ofthe functiorvprogram to arrive at: (1) the net cost

ofthe function/program that must be financed from the Municipalify's general revenues

or (2) the net program revenue that contributes to the Municipality's general revenues.

The accompanying statement of acdvities sepamtely reports the following categories of
progmm revenoes:

. Charges for seraices - These revenues genemlly consist of exchange or exchange-

like transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or

directly benefit from the goods, seivices or privileges provided, or are otherwise

dir€ctly affected by the services. These revenues include fees charged for sPecific

services, rcnt, charges for licenses and perm;ts, and fines and forfeitures, among

others.

. Program-specilic operatitrg and capilal grants and contributioN - These

revenues consist of transactions that are either manalatory or voluntary non_exchange

transactions with other govemments, organizations, or individuals that restrict the

resources for use in a particular progam. Operating gran6 and contributions consist

of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of opemting a specific

program or can be used either for opemting or capital purposes ofa specific program'

tlapital grants and contributions consist of revenues or resources that are restricted

foicapitil purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate capital assds associated with

u spe"ifi" p.ogta.. Restricted opemting and capital grants and contributions- are

program revenues because they are specifically attributable to a prognm and rcduce

ih"1"t 
"rp"nr" 

of that program to the Municipality. They are reported net of
estimated uncollectible amounts.

General revenues are the default cateSory for revenues. It inctudes all revenues and

gains that do not meet the definition of pro$am revenues. Prcperty taxes, municipal
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license taxes and consauction excise taxes are reported as general rcvenues. All other

noniax revenues (including unrestricted inter€st on depositsr Srants and contributions not

restricted fol specific prcgmms and miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the

definition of program revenues are classified as general revenues. Resources that arc

dedicated intemally by the Municipality are reported as general revenues rather than as

prograrn revenues. All general revenues are reported net of estimated uncoUectible

amounts, which are recorded as reduction ofrevenues mdrer than as expenses.

Special iiems consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other events

within the control of management that are either unusual in nature or infiequent in

Extlaordinary iren r consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other

events that are both unusual in nafure and infrequent in occunence.

The general gowmmerl function/program reported irl the accompanying statement of
activities includes expenses that are, in essence, indirect or costs of other

functiontprog.ams of the Municipality. Even though some of these costs have been

charged to certain funds in the FFS as indirect cost allocations permitted under some

federal proglams, the Muoicipality has reported these indirect costs as direct expenses of
the general govemment function. Accordingly, the MuniciPality generally does not

allocate general govemment (indirect) costs to other funclions.

The effects of all inter-fund govemmental activities (revenues, exp€nditures and odler

financing sources/uses among govemmental funds) have been removed from the

accompanying statements of net assets and activities.

The Municipality classifies the most significant Portion of its activities as govemmefltal

activities in th€ accompanying GWFS- These are activities generally financed through

taxes, intergovemmental revenues and other non_exchange rcvenues that can be used to

support the Municipality's programs or services These govemmental activities are also

generally reponed in the FFS. On the olher hand, the opemtions of Las Flores Apartments

are reported as business-type activities in the accompanying GWFS. These activities a'e

primarily financed from grants and contributions and charges for services. These

business-type activities arc also reported in the FFS

The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipality

would be hotding or managing net assets for specific individuals or other extemal parties

in accordance with trust agreements or other custodial arrangements.

The Municipality has operations and activities that are financed and operated in a manner

similar to private business enterprises, where the costs ofproviding goods or services to

the gene.ai public (expenses, including depreciat;on) is financed p.imarily through user

ctrarges; anA where ihe goveming body has decided that Periodic determination of
rerenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital

maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes'
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d) Fbnd Financial Slateheits

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity consisting ofa self-balancing set ofaccounts used
to record assets, liabilities aad residual equities, deficits or balances, and changes therein,
which are segegated for the purpose ofcarrying on specific activities or attaining cefiain
objectives in accordaflce with GAAP and/or special regulations, rcstrictions or
limitations.

The accompanying FFS are composed of: (1) the balance sheet govemmeltal funds, (2)
the statement of revenues, expenditrres and changes in fund balances govemmental
funds, (3) the statement of net assets proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash
flows proprietary fund.

These financial statements report the financial position and results operations of the
Municipality's governmental and proprietary funds and fund types by presenting sources,
uses and balances ofcurrent and noncurent financial rcsources. Some ofthese financial
statements have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (1) the Municipality's
major govemmental fund ard fund types, as defined belou', (2) the fiscal accountability
and (3) &e individual parts of the Municipality's govemment. Fiscal accountability
represents the Municipalitl's responsibility to iustify that its actions in the curent fiscal
year have complied with public decisions conceming the raising and spending ofpublic
moneys in the sbort term (generally one fiscal year).

The accompanying FFS segregate govemmental funds, prcprietary funds and fund types
according to their intended purpose and are used in demonstrating compliance with legal,
financial and contractual prcvisions. The minimum number of govemmental funds and
fund types is maintained consistent with legal and self-imposed manage al reqoircments
established by the Municipality.

On July l, 2010, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Repolting and Goye mentdl Fund TWe Definitions (GASB 54), which
modified the interpretations of certain terms within the definition ofthe special rcvenue
funds and the qpes of activities the Municipality may choose to report in those funds.
GASB 54 also clarified the capital projects fund type definition for better alignment with
the needs of prepa.ers and users. Definitions ofothe. govemmental fund g/pes also were
also modified for clarity and consistency. Pursuant to the provisions set forth by GASB
54, the Municipality reported the following R?es of govemmental funds in the
accompanying GFFS:

. General fund - The general fund is the Municipality's main operating fund and a
major govemmental firnd, as defined below, used to account fol all financial
resources and govemmental activities, except for financial resources requircd to be
accounted for in another fund. It is presumed that the Municipality's gov€mmental
activities have been reported in the general fund except for transactions for which one
of the following compe)ling reasons has required the use of another fund: (i) legal
requirements, (2) GAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial
administration requi.ing the us€ ofa govemmental fund other than the general fund.
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Debt service fund -The debl service fund is a major govemmental fund, as defined
below, used by the Municipality to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, principal and interest fori (1) bonds payable for which debt service
payments are legally mandaled to be accounted for in a debt service fund and/or (2)
bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which the Municipality is being
accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest pa),rnents
maturing in future years. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the financial
activity accounted for in the debt service fund was specifically related to bonds
payable.

The outstanding balance of geneml long-term obligations for which debt sewice
payments do not involve the advance accumulation of resources (such as notes
payable and obligations under capital leases) are only accounted for in the
accompanying statement of net assets. The debt service payments of such debts, as

applicable, are generally accounted for as debt service - principal and debt service,
interest expenditures in the geneml fund.

Capilal projecls funds - Capit2'l projects funds are major and non-major
govemmental funds, as defined below, used to account for the financial resources
used for the acquisition, construction or imp.ovement of major capital facilities and
other assets. Significant capital outlays financed from proceeds ofgeneral obligation,
public improvement or special obligation bonds accounted for also in the capital
prcjects tunds.

The use of the capital prcjects funds has been reserved only for major capital
acquisitions, construction or improvement activities that would distort financial
resources trend data if not reported separately from the other Municipality's
operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalizable assets (such as

fumiture, office equipment, vehicles and other m;nor capital assets or improvements)
have been reported in the govemmental fund from which financial resources were
used for the palment.

Special reve ue fands - The special revenue funds are non-major govemmental
funds, as defined below, used by the Municipality to account for revenues derived
from grants, contributions or other revenue sources that are either self-restricted by
the Municipality or legally restricted by outside parties for use in specific prfposes
(except for revenues that are earmarked for expenditures in major capital projects
which are accounted for in the capital project funds). The uses and limitations of
each special rcvenue fund are specified by municipal ordinances or federal and state
statutes. However, rcsources rest cted to expenditure for purposes normally
financed frorlt the general fund are reported in the Municipality's geneml fund
provided that all applicable legal requirements are appropriately satisfied. ln this
case, a special revenue fund to account for such kind oftransactions will be used only
if legally mandated.

Proprielary lund - Proprietary fund is an enterprise fund used to report the financial
position, rcsults of operation and cash flows of Las Flores Apartments (IM4d
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HUD Project No. 63-005-660-43-3572). which are activities for which the intent of
management is to recover, partially througi user charges for services (rent) and
mostly through federal gants, the cost of low-income housing se ices to the gercral
public.

The activities of Las Flores Apartments have been reported as a proprietary firnd as
GAAP permits the use of enterprise funds to report any activity for which a fee is
charged to extemal users of goods or services, rcgardless ofwhether the govemment
intends to fully recover tie cost of the goods or services provided. Thus, it is
common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for sen'ices wherc the
govemment intends to recover only a portion of its costs through fees or user charges
(GASB No. 34, paragraph 67).

The focus ofthe FFS is on major governmental funds, proprietary funds and flrnd types,
which generally represent the Municipality's most imporlant funds. Accodingly, the
Municipaliry is required to segregate govemmental funds, proprieta"ry fmds and fund
8?es between major aid non-major categories within the FFS. Major individual
govemmental and proprietary funds and fund types are repo(ed individually as separate
columns in the FFS, while data from al1 non-major govemmental and proprietary funds
are aggregated into a single column, regardless offund type.

By definition, the Municipality's general fund is always considered a major govemmental
fund for financial reporting purposes. In addition, any other govemmental fund is
classified as a maior govemmental fund in the FFS if its total assets, liabilities, revenues
or expenditures of that individual govemmental fund arc at least l0 percent of the
coresponding elemenr total (assets, liabilities, revenues or expeoditures) for all
govemmental funds. ln addition, the same element that meets the l0 percent criterion
must be at least 5 percent of the corresponding element total for all govemmental and
enterprise (proprietary) funds combined. For the purposes ofapplying the aforementioned
major fuod criteria, no eliminations of inter-fitnd balances have been made. Total
revenues for these puposes means all revenues, including operating and non-operating
revenues (net of allowances for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing
sources. Total expenditues\expenses lor these purposes mean all expendifures\expenses,
includhg operating and non-operating expenditures\expenses, except for other financing

Based on the aforemefltioned criteri4 the Municipality's major govemmental funds
reported in the accompanying FFS are: (l) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, (3)
the capital project fund, (4) the leg;slative joint resolutions fund and (5) the special
communities trust fund. ln addition, Las Flores Apartrnents has been reported separately
from govemmental funds as the only proprietary fund ofthe Municipaliry.

The legislative joint resolutions fund is a major govemmental fund, as defined below,
used by the Municipality to account for revenues derived from state legislative
assignments and conlributions that are legally restricted for a wide range ofcommunity
development activities directed toward revitalizing neighborhoods, economic
development, and providing improved community facilities and services.
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The special communities trust fund is a major govemmental fufld, created and used to
account for th€ Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Special Communities Program's ftrnds
held in trust.

As rcquired by CASB No. 3,+, the proprietary fund of the Municipality applies all
pronouncements issued by th€ Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its
predecessor bodies, such as the Accounting Principles Board (APB) and the Committee
on Accounting Procedure, issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those
pronouncements do Dot conflict with or contradict the standards of the Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board. However, the Municipality has elected to continue
foliowing more recent FASB guidance, provided it neither conflicts nor contradicts
CASB pronouncements.

The accompanying FFS are accompanied by other statements and schedules required by
GAAP: (1) the reconciliation ofthe balance sheet - govemmental funds to the statement
of net assets, and (2) the reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditues and
changes in furld bala-nces - govemmental funds to the statement of activities-

e) Measuremenl Focus and B&tis ofAccounling

Government-wide Iinancial statements and oroprietarv fund - The accompanying
GWIS and prcprietary fund are prepared using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting. Subject to the additional rules and limitations
detajled below, revenues (including intercst on deposits and rent) are generally recorded
when eamed and expenses are genera,ly recorded when a liability is incured, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and

exchalge-like transact,ons are gene.ally recorded when the exchange tales place. ln
exchange taansactions, each party to drc transaction receives and gives up essentially
equal values. An exchange-like transaction is one in which there is an identifiable
exchange and the values exchanged, though related, may not be quite equal.

Nevertheless, the exchange characteristics of the exchange-like transaction are strong
enough to justify treating it as an exchange for accounting purposes (examples include

certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as revenues

when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received).

AII rcvenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions

are recorded using the criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Finalicial Repo ing for Non-exchange Transactions (GASB No- 33). GASB No 33

established accounting and reporting standards for non-exchange transactions involving
cash and financial or capital resources (for example, most ta-xes, g&nts and prilale
donations). In a non-exchange transaction, the Municipality gives (or rcceives) value
without directly rcceiving (or giving) equal value in retum. This is different from an

exchange transaction, in which each parry receives and gives up essentially equal values.

According to GASB No. ii, the Municipality groups its noo-exchange transactions into
the following four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a) derived ta,x
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revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange revenues, (c) govemment mandated non-exchange
lransactions. and {dl !olunlary non-exchange tran5aclion5.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items.
Operati[g revenue and expenses generally result from providing sewices and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a prcprietary fund's principal ongoing
opemtions. Revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenue and expenses. The major operating revenue of the Municipalitv's
enterprise fund is from rent charges collected principally from a Section 8 New
Constuction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program housing assistance $ant agreement
with U.S. Deparrment ofHousing and Urban Development.

In the case of deived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments the
Municipality places on exchange transactions, rec€ivables and revenues are recorded
uhen the underlying exchange has occurreo.

ln the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as ptoperty taxes and

municipal license taxes), which result from assessments made by the Municipality on
nongovemmental entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange
traflsactions, receivables are gen€rally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal
claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license are generally recorded as revenues
(net of amounts considered not collectible) in the fiscal year when rcsouces are required
to be used or the first fiscal year that the use of the resources is pemitted.

Govemment-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as grants and contributions)
result when a government at one level (such as the federal or state govemment) pmvides
resofices to the Municipality and the provider govemment requires the Municipality io
use those resources for a specific purpose or purposes established in the provider's
enabling legislation. In these type oftransactions, receivables and rcvenues are geoera!ly

recorded when alt eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. For
the majority ofgrants, the Municipality must expend resources on the specific purpose or
project before the provider reimbumes any amounts. Revenue is, therefore, genemlly

recogrized as qualirying reimbursable expenditures are incured.

Voluntary non-exchange kansactions (such as donations and certain grants and

entitlements) result from legislative or contractual agreements, other than exchanges,

willingly entered into by two or more parties. In these t,?es of transactions, receivables

and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as govemment-mandated

non-exchange transactions discussed above. Events that are neither exchange nor non_

exchange tmnsactions are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incured and

the amount ofloss is .easonably estimable.

Receipts of any type of revenue sources collected in advalce for use in the following
fiscal year are recorded as unearned revenues.

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the un-mattrrcd long-term
liabiiities are recorded only in the accompanying statement of net assets and the

statement of net assets proprietary fund. The measurement focus and the basis of
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accounting used in the accompanying GVITS and the propriehry fund differ significantly

i.* it 
"'r"o.u."*.n, 

focus ana uasis of accountlng used in the preparation of the

;;;d;"ti;t;;t';*.ental fural financial statements' Therefore, the accompanving

gor"-In"ntoi fi,nO financial statements include reconciliations, as detailed in the

i"""-p"^vi.g 
"U1" 

of contents, to better identif] the relationship between the GWFS

and the govemmental fund finarcial statements.

Governmetrtal fund finatrcial statements - The accompanying govemmental 
^fund

fi""aat"l atataa*ta *" 
"p"ttad 

,"*g the current financial resources measurement locus

ino* of .u.."n, financiai resources-) and the modified accrual basis of accounting'

Accordingly, the accompanying statement ofrevenues, expenditures and chang€s ;n fund

tuUn"". ii"n"it9 - governmintal funds, reports changes in the amount of flnarcial

resouces availabie inlhe near ftrture as a result of transactions and events of the fiscal

year reported. Therefore, revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are both

measur;ble and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are

collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe

current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality considers most revenues to be

available if collected generally rvithin 90 days after June 30' 2011, except for property

taxes for which the a:vailability period is 60 days. Revenue sources not me€ting this

availability criterion or coliected in advance are recorded as deferred (eamed and

unavailable) revenues at June 30,201 l.

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property ta_xes'

municipal 
' 
license taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovemmental $ants and

contributions, interest on aleposits and charyes for services. These principal revenue

.ou.""a.".t both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying

govemmental fund financial statements, except for amounts recorded as deferred (eamed

and unavailable) revenues.

In a manoer similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria

iiiscusseil previously, all revenues, experses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities rcsulting

from exchange and exchangeJike transactions are also generally recorded wlen the

exchange taGs place. Accordingly, certain charges for sewices znd miscellaneous

a"r"ouJa 
"aa 

aecorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not

measurable until actually received.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange hansactions

are recorded in a similaimanner to the GWTS, using the previoosly discussed criteria set

forth by GASB No. 33 for non-exchange transactions, but subject to and limited by rhe

availability criteria discussed above. Accordingly, property tax and municipzllicense tex

receivables are also generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim

has arisen while propeny tax and municipal license tax revenues (net of amounts

considered not colaectible) are also generall) recorded in the fiscal )ear when resources

are requireal to be used or the tirst fiscal lear that the use of the resources.is permired'

Receivabies and revenues from fedeml and state grants and contributions, donations atd

entitlements are also generally recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the

provider have been m-et (generally, as qualiling rcimbursable expenditures are incun€d

for expenditure-driven grants).
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Interest on deposits is recorded when eamed only if collected within 90 daJs after.the

fiscal year-end since these revenues would be considered both measumble and available'

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB InterpretationNo- 6, Recognilion and Measurement

of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Goremmental Funcl Fhaficial Slatements

("GASBI No. 6), in the absence of an explicit requircment (ie, the absence of an

applicable modification, discussed below) the Municipality generally accrues a

g&emmental fund liability and an exPenditure (including salaries, Professional services,

;upplies, utilities, etc.) in the period in'lvhich the govemment incurs the liabilify, to the

e;nt that these liabilities are- normally expected to be liquidated with current available

financial resources. GASBI No. 6 modified the recognition criteria for certain

expenditurcs and liabilities reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting prior

tobAsB No. 34, and clarified a number of situations in which the Municipality should

distinguish between govemmental tund liabilities and general long-term liabilities'

Therefore, the accompanying balance sheet - govemmental firnds generally reflects

assets that will be converted into cash to satisry curent liabilities. Long-term assets

(except for accounts receivables and inter_fund advances) and those assets thal will not be

converted into cash to satisry current liabilities a.e generally not accouflted for in the

accompanying balance sheet govemmental funds. At the same time, long-term

liabilities (genemlly, those unmatured thet will not require the use of current financial

resources to pay them) are not accounted for in the accompanying balance sheet -
govemmental funds.

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GASBI No. 6

include:

. Prificipal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when

payment is due), except for principal and interest due on July 1, 201i, which have

been recorded as govemmental fund liabilities a1 June 30, 2011, uhich is the date

when resources are available in the debt service fund (generally, June 30)

. Notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensated absences, and amounts

subject to accrued claims andjudgments under litigation are recorded only when they

mature (when payment is due).

. Certain accrued liabilities not due and payable or not normally exPected to be

liquidated with current available and exPendable financial resources are recorded in

the accompanying statement of net assets. Such liabilities are recorded in the

govemmental funds when they mature.

. Execdory purchase orders and contracts are recorded as a 
'eservation 

of fiind

balance in Ihe go\emmenral funds l'FS.

The measurement focus ofthe govemmental funds financial statements is on decreases of
net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are

measurable and are recorded when the related govemmental fund liability is incurred'

Allocation of costs, such as depreciation and arnortization, are recorded in the

accompanying statement of activities and the statement of revenues, expenses and
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changes in fund net assets, but are not recorded in the accompanying govemmental fund

financial statements.

Stewa ship, Cornplinnce and Accountabilil!

Budeetary Controi

According to Law No. 81, the Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet Prepare arnual

budgets each fiscal year for the Municipality's general fund and debt s€rvice fund. Such

legaily adopted budgets are based on expected expenditures by program and estimated

rcsources by source. The annual budgeis are d€veloped using elements of performance-

based program budgeting and zero-based budgeting, and include estimates of revenues

anal other resouces for the ensuing fiscal year under laws and regulations existing at the

time the budg€ts are Preparcd.

The Mayor must submit, for each fiscal year commencing on July l, an annual budgetary

resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the

Common*ealth (the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislatu.e no later than the

immediately preceding May l0 and May 15, respectively. The Commissioner

preliminariiy verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable laws and

regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before the

immediately preceding June 13.

The Municipal Legislature has lO business days, up to the immediately preceding June

13, to discuss and approve the Project with modifications The Municipal Legislature

may amend the budgets submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so far to

cause a deficit without imposing ta.xes or identirying other sources of revenue to cover

such deficit. After the Municipal Legislature modifies and pretiminarily approves the

Project, the modified Project is sent back to the Mayor for his approval or rcjection

witlin 6 days. The Mayor may decrease or eliminate any line item but may not inffease

or insert any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor may also veto the bud€ets intheir

entirety and retum it to the Municipal Legislature with his objections. If the Mayor

rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to eight (8) days to adopt or

reiect the recommen<lations or objections of the Mayor. The approved Project is sent

again to the Mayor, which then would have 3 days to sign and approve it.

If the budgets are not aalopted prior to the end of the deadlines refered to above, the

annual buigets for the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and.the

Mayor, are- automaticaliy renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal

Legislature and the Mayor approve new budgets. This regulation permits- the

M;nicipality to continue doing payments for its ope.ations and other puposes until the

new budgets are approved.

The annual budgets may be updated for an) estimate revisions as well as fiscal )ear-end
encumbrances, ind -ay inctuae any additional information requested by the Municipal

Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets,

which are subject to the approval of the Municipal Legislature.
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The Municipality's Department of Finance and Budget has the responsibility to ensure
that budgetary spending control is maintained. For day-to-day management control
purposes, expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed budgeted arnounts at the
expenditure-tlpe level of each cost center (activity within a program within a fund). The
Mayor may transfer unencumbered appropriations within programs within funds. The
Municipal Legislature may transfer amounts among programs within and among funds.
The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not Iegally
exceed appropriation) is at the fiinctiorl/progmm level (general govemment, urban and
economic development, public safery, heaith and sanitaiion, culture, recreation and

education, and public housing and welfare) within a fund.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any
fiscal year shall not exceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for
said fiscal year unless the imposition of texes sufficient to cover said appropriatio[s is
provided.

Buds€tarv AccouIItitrg

The Municipality's annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of
accounting, which is not in accordance with CAAP.

According to the budgetary basis ofaccounting, revenue is gene.ally recorded when cash

is received. Short-term and long-term borrowings may be used to fi.ance budgetary

excess of expenditurcs over revenues,

The Municipality uses encumbralce accounting to record the full amount of purchase

orders, contracts and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from
the appropriation prior to actual expenditure. In the govemmental funds, encumbrance

accounting is a significant aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, expenditures ar€

generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Availabte
apprcpriations and encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of
the fiscal year- Amounts required to settle claims and judgments against the

Municipality, and certain other liabilities, are not recognized until they are encumbe.ed or
otherwise processed for payment. Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances

Iapse at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are

continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent

balance from the prior year be ca.ried forward and made available for cunent spending.

The ac.ompanying budgetary comparison schedule general fund Provides infonnation
about the general fund's original budget, its amendments, and the actual results of
opemtions of such majol govemmental fund under the budgetary basis of accounting for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011- Further details of the Municipality's budgetary

control at the legal level may be obtained from the Budgetary Liquidation Report for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which is prepared by the Muoicipality's Depatunent of
Finance. Copies ofthat report may be obtained by wriling to the Municipality's Director
ofFinance.
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Because accounting principles applied for the purposes of the developing data on a

budgetary basis differ significantly liom those used to present the govemmental fund
financial statements in conformity with GAAP, a reconciliation of the differences

between the general and debt sewice funds' budgetary bases and GAAP actualamounts
are presented at the bottom ofthe respective budgetary comparison schedules.

g) Unreslricted and Resticted Deposils

The Municipality's deposits are composed of: (1) cash on hand, (2) demand deposits in
commercial banks, and (3) demand deposits in the Govemment Development Bank for
Puerto Rico (fiscal agent).

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, public funds deposited by the

Municipality in commercial banks must be firlly collateralized for the amounts deposited

in excess ofthe fedeml depository insurance generally prcvided by the Federal Deposits

lnsurance Corpomtion (FDIC). Agents designated by the Commonwealth's Secretary of
the Treasury, but not in the Municipality's name hold all securities pledged as collateml.

Cash in fiscal agent in the debt service firnd consists of cash related to property ta-x

collections amounting to S?,404,144, which is restricted for the payment of the

Municipality's debt service, as required by law. Cash in fiscal agent in the capital

projects fund, amounting to $9,095,341 consists mainly of unspeni Proceeds of bonds,

which are restricted for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets.

Cash in fiscal agent of other govemmental funds, amounting to $329,847 represents

mainly the balance of interest and non_interest bearing accounts restricted to finance the

operations ofcertain federal and state funded progIams.

Restricted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $52,539 in capital projects fund

reprcsents mainly the balance of inte.est and non-interest bearing accounts restricted to

finance the operations of certain fedeml aod state funded programs.

Restricted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $2,263,145 in the legislative joint

resolutions fund represents mainly the balance of interest and non-interest bearing

accounts restricted to finance the opemtions of certain opemting and capital grants from

the Legislature ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico.

Restncted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $225,196 in the special communities

trust fund represents mainly the balance of interest and non_interest bearing accounts

restricted to finance the operations ofa state funded program used to carry out permanent

capital improvements to various communities in Aibonito.

Restricted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $506,983 in other governmental

funds represents mainly the balance of inlerest and non_interest bearing accounts

restricted to finance the operations ofcertain state_funded and federally-funded oPerating

and capital grants.

Restricted cash in commercial banks of Las Flores Apartments (proprietary fund),

amountiflg to $77,184, represents the balance of interest and non_interest bearing
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accounts restricted to finance the proj€ct operations. Las Flores Apartments is required to
set amounts for the r€placement of property and other project expenditures, as approved

by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Accordingly, the restricted

cash balances of Las Flores Apartrnents include a replacement reserve of$27,702.

Unrestricleil anil Resticted Accounls Receitable

Accounts rcceivable consist ofall revenues quned but not collected at June 30,2011.
These accounts receivables are stated net of estimated reserved for doubtful accounts,

which are determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current

economic conditions and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.

Activities among govemmental funds that are representative of lending,borrowing

arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due

tolfrom other firnds" (i.e. the cu.rent portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances to/from

other firnds" (i.e., the non-curent portion of inter-fund loans), as applicable. A11 other

outstanding balances benveen funds are reported as "due to/liom other firnds."

Cdpital Assels

Capital assets used in govemmental and business-lype activities include land and land

improvements, builalings, structurcs and building imprcvements, machinery and

equipment (including equipment held under capital leases), fumiture and fixtules,

licensed vehicles, construction in progress, and infrastructure. These assets are

capitalized and reported in the accompanying statement ofnet assets and tbe statement of
nei assets proprietary fund. lnfrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and

include roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and other similar assets.

For financial reporting purposes, the Muricipality defines capital assets as assets with an

individual cosi basis of $25 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or

improvement, and with useful ]ives extending beyond one year. All assets with

individual costs under $25 or with useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged

directly to expense in the govemment-wide statement of activiiies and the statement of
revenues, expinses and changes in fuod net assets. In the govemmental funds, all capital

assets are recorded as capital outlays (expenditures), while all assets with individual costs

under $25 are recorded as expenditures in the corresponding function/pro$am identified

with the asset.

in the statement of net assets and the statement of net assets - proprietary fund, all capital

assets are recorded a! cost or estimated historical cost if aclual cost was unavailable,

except for alonated capital assets, which are rccorded at their estimated fair value at the

date of donation. Estimated historical costs based on deflated current costs were used to

value a portion of the infiasffucture constructed or acquired prior to June 3O, 2003 and

certain Lnds, buildings, structures and building imp.ovements. The method used to

deflate the current coits with an approximate price index was used only in the case of
certain items for which the histo cal cost documentation was not available Actual

historical costs were used to value the infrastructure acquired or construcled after June
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30,2003 as well as, construction in progress, machinery and equipment and licensed
vehicles acquired prior or after such date.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the statement of oet
assets as projects are constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do

not add value to the asset or materially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciatio[ and amortization expense is recorded only in the govemment-wide
statement of activities. However, there is no deprcciation or amonization recorded for
land and construction in progress. Depreciable capital assets are generally depreciated or
amortized over their estimated useful lives under the straight-line method, except for
machinery and equipment held under capital leases which is depreciated over the shorter

of its estimated useful life or the lease term. The estimated useful lives ofmajor capital
asset categories are:

Land improvements
Buildings, sftuctures and building improvements

Motor vehicles
Fumiture, fixtures, machinery and equipment,

excluding those held under capital leases

Office equipment held under capital leases

Years
20

30 to 50

20 to 50

5

5to20
3to5

Depreciation and amortization expense of capital assets is recorded as a direct exPense of
the function/program specifically identified with the asset. DePreciation and

amortization of infrastructue is not allocated to various functions/programs but reported

as direct expenses of the urban and economic development function,

j) DeJe ed Rerenues

In the govemmental fund financial statements, defered revenue arises when one of the

following situations occurl

. Potential revenue does not m€et both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for
rcvenue rccognition in the current period (reported as "eamed and unatailable
levenue" in the accompanying balance sheet-governmental funds). As previously

discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 201I and collected

within 90 days (60 days for property taxes) thereafter to pay obligations due at June

30. ln subsequent periods, when both criteria (measurable and available) are met, the

liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

. The Municipalify receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as

"uneafied lerenue" in the accompanying balance sheet-govemmental funds). In
subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for
deferred rcvenue is removed and revenue is recognized.
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Uneamed revenues at the govemment-wide and the proprietary fund levels arise only

when the Municipalily receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as

"uneamed reveiue" in the accompanying statement of net assets) No "eamed and

unavailable revenue ' is accounted for in the accompanying statement of net assets no'
the statement ofnet assets proprietaly fund.

Compensaled Absences

The liabilit, for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net

assets is limited to leave that: (1) is attributable to services already rendered on or before

June 30, 2011 and (2) is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of
the Municipality and the employee (such as illness). Compensated absences that relate to

future services or are contingent on a specific event outside the control ofthe employer or

the employee are accounted for in the period when those services are rendercd or those

events take place-

The liability for compensated absences includes salary_related costs, which are directly

and incrementally related to the amount of salary Paid to the employee (such as

employer's share ofsocial security ta-res and medicare ta-\es)

The vacation policy of the Municipality Provides for the accumulation of regular

vacations at a rate of 2.5 alays per month (30 days per fiscal year) per emPloyee'

Employees accumulate regular sick leav€ at a rate of 1.5 days per month (18 days per

nscaf yea.). Employees accumulate compensatory time at a €te of 15 times the

overtime worked. All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by employees in excess

of 30 days and 90 days, .espectively, are paid to employees each fiscal y-ear, if not

consumed, as rcquired by law. ln the case of compensatory time, the excess of 240 houn

is paid to employees each fiscal year, if not consumed.

Upon termination of emPloyment, a. employee receives compensation for all

accumulated unpaid regular va;ation leave at the current mte. ln the case ofregular sick

leave, if the employet terminates his or her employment before reaching l0 years of
services, such re;uhr sick leave is not paid to the employee, ifnot consumed ln addition

upon terminatio-n of employment, an employee does not receive compensation for

"o.p"n.rtory 
ti.", if noi consumed previously. After l0 years ofservice-s,-any regulsr

sick leave balance is paid to the employee- Accumulated vacation time is fully vested to

the employee at any time.

The liability for compensated absences is in the statement of net assets A liability for

"o*p"n.ut"d 
absences is rcported in the govemmental fund financial statements only

wheir matured (when payment is due), for example' as a result ofemployee rcsignatiols

Long-lem Debl

The loog{erm liabilities reported in the accompanying stat€ments of net assets include

the Municipality's bonds payable, notes payable' and accrued compensated absences'

D
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All long-tem debts to be repaid from govemmental resources is rcported as liabilides in

the acc6mpanying statemena of net assets Principal and interest palments on bonds due

on July 1, 20i 1 iave been recorded as govemmental fund liabilities in dre debt service

fund at June 30,2011, wheo resources were available' ln the govemmental fund

financial statements, the face amount of debt issued (gross debt pioceeds) is reported as

other financing sources when issued

In the govemmental activities of the GWFS, debt issuance costs have been capitalized

and rep'orted as deferred charges, which arc being amortized under the straight-line

method over the resPective live; of the debts. In the GFFS, such costs are rccorded as

expenditures as incurred.

Non-interest beaing notes payable are accounted for under the provisions ofOpinion No'

21, I terest on Reieivablis ond Pttyables, issued by the Accounting Principles Board

(AiB No. 21). According to APB No 2l, the Municipality has recorded such not€s at

present value-*ith an imputed interest rate that approximates the rate that -would 
have

teen used, using the same terms and conditions, if it had been negotiated by ail

independent lendir. [n the accompanying stat€ment ofnel assets, suc^h notes.payable are

reported net ofthe applicable unamortized discount, which is the difference between the

presert value and the iace amount ofthe notes. The aliscount is amortized over the life of

ih" not". ,sing the effective interest method. Amortization of the notes discount is

recordeal as pa-rt of interest expense in the statement of activities ln the GFFS' notes

discount is recognized as other financing uses as incurred.

m) Accoanting fot Pensio Costs

For the putpose ofapplying the rcquirements ofGASB Statement No 2'7, Accountingfor

Pensiois iy State and Locat GoTemnent Employers (CASB No 27), the state

govemment of the Commonwealth of Puefio Rico is consideted to be the sponsor ofthe

Employ"es' Retirement System of the Govemment of Pue(o Rico and Its

Insirumentalities (ERS) and System 2000' a multi-employer cost-shating defined benefit

pension plan and a hybrid defined contriburion plan, respectively in which the employees

iftfre liunicipality participate. Tbe Municipaliry is considered a panicipant' and not a

sponsor, of tiese- retirement systems since the majority of the participants in the

olforementioned pension hust fu;ds are emptolees of the Common*ealth of Puerto Rico

ancl the basic fi;ancial statements of such retirement systems are part of the f[rancial

r+orting eotity ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly, no portion ofthe net

p"'nsion-oUtlgrtion (NPO) related to ERS has been allocated to the Municipality in the

l""o.punyii! basic financial statements. The basic financial stat€ments of the

Commonweaith of Puerto Rico reporl the total amount of the net pension obligation of

ERS, including any amount that may correspond to the Municipality'

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a

;;i#;;i"y;. cost-sharing plan. Accordinglv, pension costs recognized in the

accorirpanying 
- 
basic financi;l statements are equal to the statutorily required

contributi;ns, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions'
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Risk Monagemerrt

The Municipality carries commercial insurance covering casualty, theft, tort claims and

other iosses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the Commonwealth's Departnent of
Treasury (the Department of Treasury) on behalfofall municipalities of Puerto Rico. The

Departinena of Treasury pays the insurance premiums on behalf of the Municipality and

then is reimbursed each fiscal year through monthly equal payments deducted fiom the

Municipality's gross property tax collections made by the Municipal Revenue Collection
Center ("CRIM", by its Spanish acronym), a govemmental entity responsible for billing
and collecting property taxes on behalf of all municipalities of Puerto Rico.

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by

automobile accidents. This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents

Compensation Administration (ACAA, by its Spanish acronym), a component unit ofthe
Common\realth. This insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public
roads and highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium applicable at June 30, 2011 is

$35 per licensed motor vehicle, which is paid directly to ACAA.

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State

Insurance Fund Cor?oration (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This
insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or
employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their
employment. Workers' compensation insurance premiums are also paid through monthly
deductions made by CRIM from the Municipality's gross property tax collections.

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and

drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance progtams

administered by the Commonwealth's Department of Labor and Humat Resources
(DOL). Ttese insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and prcvid€

supplementary insuranc€ coverage for tempomry disabiiity, or death because of wo.k or
employment-related accidents or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their
employment. Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and drivers'
insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Municipality also obtains medical insumnce coverage from several health insurance

companies for its employees. Different health insurance coverage and premium options

arc negotiated each year by the Department of Treasury on behalf of the Municipality.
The current insurance policies have not been canceled or terminated at June 30, 2011.

Premiums are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance company. In the Past
three years, the Municipalit) has not settled claims that exceeded insuance coverage.

Fafid Balances

On July i,2010, the Municipality adopted the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 54,

Fund Balance Reporting and Gowrnmental Fund TWe Defnitions (GASB 54), which

enhanced the usefi ness offund balance information by providing clearer fund balance

classifications that can be more consistently applied- This statement establishes fund

balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which

o
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the Municipality is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources

reported in Eovemmental tunds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB 54, the accompanying GFFS report firnd baiance

amounts that are considered nonspendable, such as fund balance associated wiih
inventories. Other fund balances have been reported as restricted, committed, assigned,

and unassigned, bas€d on the relative strength ofthe constraints that control how specific
amounts can be spent, as described as follows:

r. Nonspendable - Represenl resouces that cannot be spent readily with cash or are

legally or contractually required not to be spent, including but not limited to
inventories, prepaid items, and long term balances of int€rfund loans and

accounts receivable.

b. -Rert/ided - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific puryoses

stipulated by constitutional provisions, extemal resource provide$ (extemally

imposed by creditors or grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is,

Iegislation that creates a new revenue soutce and rcstricts its use). Effectively,
restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

c. Committed - Reprcsent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by fomal
action of the Municipal's highest level of decision making authodty (Municipal
Legislature through resolutions and ordinances) and can only be changed by a
similar lau, ordinance or resolulion.

d. Assigned - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed (generally executive orders approved by the Mayor). lntent can be

expressed by the Municipal Legislature, the Mayor or by an official or body to
which the Municipal Legislature delegates authority in conformity with the

Autonomous Municipalities Act of Pue.to Rico, as amended. In govemmental

funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance rePresents the remaining
amount that is not restricted or committed.

e. lJnassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's geneml

fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other

classifications. In other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to repofi
a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which
amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

Negative fund batance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount that
will raise the fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts in
restricted, committed and assigned fund balance classifications have been

reclassified to unassigned fund balances.

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose

(restricted or committed lund balance in the general fund) only ii (1) such resources

meet the othe. criteria for those classifications, as described above and (2) the

circumstances or conditions that signal the need for stabilization are identified in
sufficient detail aild a.e not expected to occur routinely. However, the Municipality has

not entered into any stabilizationlike arrangements, nor has set aside material financial
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resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund balance

amounts as of and for th€ fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

In situations when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts arc available

in multiple fund balance classifications, the Municipality uses restricted rcsources first,

and then unrestricted resources. Within unrestricted resources, the Municipality generally

spends committed resources firs! followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned

resources when expenditures-

The classification of the Municipality's individual govemmental funds among general,

alebt service, special revenue and capital project fund 8?es used in prior fiscal years for
fimncial reporting purposes was not affecbd by the implementation of CASB 54. In

addition, the financial positions and the results of operations reported in the

accompanying GFFS as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,2011 have not been

affected for this change in accounting principle. Accordingly, the accompanying CFFS

have not reported any retroactive rcstatements or rcclassifications of fund equities as of
July 1,2010.

I er-Jut d Activities

The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fund

activities recorded among govemmental funds in the accompanying FFS:

. Inter-fund loans Represent resouces (assets) prcvided by one govemmental fund

to other govemmental fund with a requirement and commitment for repa,T nent

(reimbursement), which arc recorded as "due from inthe lender govemmentalfund

and "dre lo" in the boro{er govemmental fund. Inter-fund receivabl€s, which arc

not considered to be currently available financial rcsources, are reported as

"advdnces". For amounts not expected to be collected, inter-fund

receivables/payables are reduced to their estimated .ealizable (settlemeot) value, and

the portion of the inter-fund loan that is not expected to be repaid is reported as a

"tra \fer-i " fioxi.lhe govemmentalfxnd that provided the loan.

. Inter-fand lrunslers (trunsJe8-iry'{orr, - Represent flows of assets (Permanent

.eallocation of financial resources among govemmental funds) without equivalent

flows of assets in retum and without a rcquirement for repayment. Tnnsfers are

rcported as "other frnancr?8 lses " in the govemmental fund making transfers and as

" othet findncing sources " in the govemmentalfund receiving transfers.

rcimbufiefients - Represent repayments (reimbursements) {iom th€

govemmental fund responsible for particular exp€nditures or expenses to i}te

govemmental fund that initially paid for them.

In the FFS, inaer-fund activity has not been eliminated, as permitted by GA,AP.

ase of Estifiates

The preparation ol the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make significani estimates and assumptions that affect

q)
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the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the basic finanoial statements, and the reponod amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

r) Fulure Adoplion oJ Accounting Prono ancemerrls

The GASB has issued the foilowing statements that have eflective dates after June 30,

2011:

. GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Findncidl Reporting for Set'vice

Concession Arrangemerrs (CASB 60). The requirements ofthis Statement

are effective for the fiscal year commencing on July I, 201 l.

. GASB Statement No- 62, Codilcation of Accounting ond Fi ancial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-Novenber 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements (GASB 62). The requirements of this Statement are

effe€tive for the fiscal year commencing on July I, 2012-

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not
yet been determined.

2. Deposits

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico
and the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico (CDB). Proceeds from all bonds
and the funds related to certain federal grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

On July 1, 2004, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB
No.40), Deposit anrl Investment Risk Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB State e t No. 3.

This statement requires that staae and local govemments disclose essential risk information
about deposits and investments. The disclosure rcquirements cover four main areas: (l) credit
risk, (2) interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4) foreig exchange exposure.

. Credit risk This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment
will not fulfill its obligations. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the

CommoDwealth, the Municipality has adopted, as i1s custodial credit risk policy, the

Stateme t of Investmenl Guidelines for the Govemment of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico. Accordingly, the Municipality is only allowed to invest its obligations
of th€ Commonwealth, obligations of the United States of Americ4 certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances or in pools of obligations of the
Municipalities of Puerto Rico, wh;ch are managed by GDB. According to the

aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality is not allowed to invest in
marketable securities or any other type of investments for which credit risk exposure

may be significant. Therefore, the Municipalify's managemeot has concluded that the

credit risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the

Municipality's deposits is considered low at June i0,2011.

. Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments
will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its
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exposure to declines in fair vatues by: (1) not including debt investments in its
investments portfolio at June 30, 2011, (2) limiting the weighted average maturity of
its investments to periods of three months or less aod (3) keeping most of its banks

deposits in interest bearing accounts genemting interest at prevailing market rales. At
June 30,201 l, the interest rate risk associated with the Municipality's cash.

Custodial credit risk In the case ofdeposits, this is the risk that in the ev€nt of a

bank failure, the Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the
Statement of Investment Guidelines for the Go\ie lt e l of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, the balances deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up to a

m (imum of $100,000 per depositor. In addition, public funds deposited ir
commercial banks by the Municipality are fully collateralized for the amounts
deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance. AII securities pledged as

collateral are held in the Municipal;ty's name by the agents ofthe Commonwealth's
Secretary of Treasury. Deposits of GDB, amounting to $ I 1,829,932 at June 30,
201l, are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by
GDB on deposit transactions have been incuned by the Municipalitv through .rune

30, 2011. tt is management's policy to only ma;ntain deposits in banks affiliated to
FDIC to minimize the custodial credit risk, except for GDB. Thererore, the
Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 201l, the custodial credit
risk associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreisn exchange risk - This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will
adversely affect the value of an investment or a deposit. According to the

aforementioned investment guidelines, adopted by the Municipality, the Municipality
is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types ofinvestments for
which foreign exchange risk exposure may be siSnificant. Accordingly, management
has conclud€d that the foreign exchange risk related to the Municipality's deposits is

considered low at June 30.201 l.

Cash and cash equivalents at June 10,2011, are classified in the accompanying

balance sheet - governmental funds as follows:

3, Municipal License Taxes

The Municipality is authorized by Act No. 8l to impose and collect municipal license tares
to any natural or legal person having trade or business activities within the territory of
Aibonito. This is a self-assessed ta-x generally based on the business volume of taxpayers,
measured by gross revenues. The Municipality establishes the applicable ta,r rates. At June

30, 201 l, the municipal license tax rates imposed by the Municipality were 1.50 percent for
financial institutions and 0.50 percent for other tlpes oftaxpayers. Any taxpayers that have

been granted with a partial tax exemption under any of the tax incentive acts of the

Commonwealth ultimately pay municipal license taxes at reduced tax rates, Senerally
between 60 percent and 90 percent under standard rates.

Each taxpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume
of business through a tax retum filed every April 15, based on the actual volume ofbusiness
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(revenues) earned in the preceding calendar year. Taxpayers with a sales volume of $1

million or more must include audited financial statements with their tax retum filings. The tax
can be paid by the taxpayer in two equal installments due on July 15 and January 15,

subsequent to the filingof the declaration on April 15. The first installment ofthe tax covers

the sl\-month period ended December 31, subsequent to the filing date ofthe declaration,
while the second installment of the tax covers the six-month period ended June 30 of the
subsequent calendar year. If a taxpayer elects to pay the tax in full on the filing date of the

declaration (generaliy April 15), a 5 percent discount is granted automatically on the totalta"x
amount due.

Any municipal license taxes col,ected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year)

are recorded as uneamed revenues in the GWFS and the GFFS. Total municipal license tax
receivable amounted to $7,018 at June 10,2011. Deferred municipal license tax revenues

recorded in the accompanying GWFS and GFFS amounted to $2,079,328 at June 30, 2011.

4. Property Taxes

The Municipality is auiho zed by Act No- 8l to impose and collect pmperty taxes from any

natuml or legal person that, at Janoary 1 of each calendar year: (1) is engaged in trade or
business and is fie owner of personal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns

residential real prop€rty with a value in excess of $ 1 5,000 (at I95 7 estimated market prices).

CRIM is rcsponsible for the billings and collections of real and personal propeqv taxes on

behalf of the Municipality. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, CRIM informs to the
Municipality the estimated amount of property ta-x expected to be collected for the ensuing

fiscal year. Throughout the fiscal year, CRM advances funds to the Municipality based on

the initial estimated collection amounts for the fiscal year. CRIM is required by law to
prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between

the amounts advanced to the Municipality and the property tax amounts actually collected

from ta\payers on behalf ofthe Municipality during the fiscal year. This settlement has to be

completed on a preliminary basis not later than December 3 i following the fiscal year end.

Personal property ta\es are self-assessed by taxpayers every year using the book valu€ of
personal property assets owned by the taxpayer at January I (assessment date) and reporting
such taxable value through a personal property ta-x retum filed on May 15 subsequent to the

:lssessment date. The total personal property tax rate in force at June 30,2011 was 6.00

percent (of which taxpayers pay 5-80 percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the

Department of Tr€asury, as a subsidy).

Real property taxes arc assessed by CfuM. The assessment on real plopery" is made every

January I and is based on estimated current values ofthe property, deflated to 1957 market

pr;ces. The total rcal properry tax rate in force at June 30, 2011 was 8.00 percent (ofwhich
7.80 percent is paid by taxpayers aod the remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the

Department ofTreasury, as a subsidy).

Residential real property occupied by ils owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt

from property taxes only on the first $15,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices).

For exempt amounts, the Department ofTreasury assumes the payment ofthe basic tax (4.00
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percent and 6.00 percent for personal and real prope(y, respectively), except for properry

assessed for less thar $3,500 (at 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made by th€

Department ofTreasury.

Accordirg to Act No. 81, included within the total personal and real property ta\ rates of5.80
percent and ?.80 percent, respectively, there is a Ie\,y ofan annual special tax of 1.03 percent

ofthe assessed value of all real and personal property not exonerated from ta\ation. This

special tax is levied by the Commonwealth but is collected by CRIM Collections of this

special tax are directly remitted by CRIM to the Commonwealth's debt service fund, for the

payment ofthe general long-tem debt ofthe Commonwealth.

In addition, included within the total personai and real property tax mtes of5.80 percent and

7.80 percent, respectively, there is a portion ofthe tax rate in the amount of2.00 percent that

is restricted for the Municipality's debt service requirements on brnds. Such amounts are

recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund.

Furthermore, included within the total pe$onal and real property tax rates of5.80 percent and

7.80 percent, rcspectively, there is a portion of the tax rates that is recorded in the

Municipality's general fund, of which a portion is restricted for the payment of: (l) the

insurance premiums acquired through the Department of Treasury, (2) the monthly

contributions to CRIM, which are statutorily required as the Municipality's share of CRIM

operating expenses, (4) statutory conffibutions to the Puerto Rico Health Services

Admiristration (PRHSA), as the Municipality's share of the cost of the public health

insurance coverage provided to qualirying low-income citizens, (5) certain notes payable to

CRIM and, (6) certain amounts due to certain agencies and component units of the

Commonwealth, which are recorded within intergovemmental payables in the accompanying

GWIS and GFFS. The 0.20 percent of unrestdcted personal and real propeny ta"xes paid by

the Department ofTreasury as a subsidy is recorded in the Municipality's general fimd.

The Additional Lottery System of the Commonwealth (the Additional Lottery) is an

operational unit reported as an enterprise fund in the Commonwealth's basic financial

statements, which currently operates several betting altematives to th€ citizens of Puerto

Rico. The Additional Lottery is required every fiscal year to distribute a portion of its excess

of revenues over expenses as follows:

. Thirty five percent of its net eamings (defined as the excess of revenues over expenses

l€ss an amolrnt earmarked for the Fund for Rent and Home Improvement Subsidy

Progam for the LowJncome Qualirying Elderly) is earmarked to the municipalities of
the Commonwealth. of which a ma-ximum of $26 million, on an annual basis, is

distributed to the Municipal Equalization Fund held by CRIM to cover operaring

expenses and pernanent improvements of the municipalities.

. An additional arnount not exceeding $16 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the

Municipal Equalization Fund, provided it is w;thin the thirty-five percent corresponding

to the municipalities of the Commonwealth Wlen the accumulated municipal

appropriations from the municipalities' Puerto Rico Health Reform are covered up to

June 30, 1997, these resources will be assigned to PRHSA.
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At June 30, 2011, property ta,\es receivable recorded in the gene.al and debt setvice fund

amounted to $ 1,009,994 and $ 6,193, respectively, net ofa reserve lor doubtful accounts.

5. Sales and Use Taxes

The Municipality imposes a sales and usage tax within fie territorial limits of the

Municipality pursuant to the Intemal R€venue Code of the Covemment of Puerto Rico. This

is a self-assessed tar consisting ofone and a half percent (1.5%) on the sale price ofa taxable

item or on the purchase price ofall usage, storage or consumption ofa ta.\able item. ltis
collected monthly in a tax rctum that is due twenty calendar days after the end of each month.

A portion of the sales tax amounting 0.2% is restricted for the palment oflong-term debt and

is recorded in the debt service fund. Tbe remaining portion of i.3% is recorded in the
genemlfund since is available for general operating purposes.

Sale tax receivable represents sales tax levied that were collected subsequent to June 30,

2010, but pertaining to current year period. At June 30, 2011, the sales and use taxes

receivable amounted to $16,378.

6. Construction f,xcise Taxes

The Municipality imposes and collects municipai construction excise taxes to most natural

and legal persons and any govemmental instrumentality that carry out activities related to

construction! expansion, major repairs, relocatioDs, altemtions and other t)!es of peman€nt

improvements to residential, commercial and industrial buildings and structures within the

territorial area ofthe Municipality. The tax is also applicable to infrastructure projects, the
installatioo of machinery, equipment and fixtures, and other O?es of construction-related

activities.

The construction excise ta\ generally is a self-assessed ta.x imposed over the cost of the

project, net of ce(ain exemptions such as the costs associated with the acquisition of land,

project design and other engineering fees, licenses and permits, legal and accountinS fees,

and most marketing and adveriising costs. The ta-\ is paid by the taxpayer at the beginning of
the project.

All single-family rcsidential construction projects not related 1o housing developm€nt

projects, condominiums, or any similar projects, are patially exempt from consauction
excise ta.xes. In addition, a portioo ofall single-family residential imProvement projects are

exempt from construction excise taxes. All project carried out on buildinSs and structues
classified as historical treasures by the Puerto Rico Planning Board have an in the tax rate

applicable to constuction excise taxes.

Construction excise tax receivable rcpresents taxes thal were collected subsequent to June 30,

201 l, but pertaining to current year period. At June 30, 2011, the construction excise taxes

receivable amounted to $14,542.
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7, Inter-fundTmnsactrons

The composition of inte.-fund balances at June 3 0, 20 I 1 and for the fiscal year then ended is

as follo\rs:

Legislative

capital joint Debr other Total

General projects resolutions s€rvice govemmental govemmental

tund tund tund tund tunds fimdsDue fron:

- Major govemmental tundsi

Gen€ral tund $ - $ 413,26',1 S 20,631 $ 37 S l9l,0ll $ 624,952

826,803

502

Legislativejoinlresolutionstund 826,803

- r,901,445
- Special communities trust tund

Other govemmental funds

Total

502

1,900,731 712

s 2,728,038 $ 413,979 S 20,637 $ 37 $ 191,0i1 $ 3,353,702

Trahsfet ro ofiet funds:

Major gov€.nrnental tunds:

- General tund

Capital projects tund

Deb. service tund

- Special communitiestust tund

Other govemmental tunds

_ Total

TrdnsJe t ft om o th e t fu ntt :

Capital Debt Other Total

General projects s€rvice govemmental govemmental

tund tund fimd tunds tunds

This Spdce Hd$ Bee Left Blank l tehtio,rall!

$-$-$-$-$
212,821 - 212,821

699 - 699

1,078 - I,078

363 62 42s

$ 214.961 $ - $ - $ 62 $ 215,023
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8. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June I0, 20 I 1 is as follows:

Balance Balance
zl

June 30.2010 Additions Reclassifications June 30p!1!
COST BASIS:
Cost basis of capita, assets, not subject

to depreciation and amortization:
In6.asaructure land

construction in pro$ess

Total cost basis of capital assets, not
subject to depreciation and amortization

Cost basis ofcapital assets, subject to
depreciation and amortization:

Buildings, structures and building improvements

Iniastructure
Land Improvements
Licensed vehicles
fumiture, fixrures. machinery and equipment

Total cost basis ofcapiial assets subject

to depreciation and amodization
Total cost bash ofcapiial assets

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:
Buildings, structures and building improvemenis
InFastru€ture
Lard lmprovements
Licensed vehicles

Fumiture, fixtures, machinery and equipment

Toial accumulated depieciation and amortizarion

CAPITAL ASSETS. NET

s 1s,357,537 $ -$ - $ 15,357,537

526,839 3s8.,114 (233,013) 652,210

15.884.i76 358.414 (233,013) 16.009.',71',7

10,121,055
16,5t4,495

2,971,203

1,s02,6 r2
- 10,121,055

233,013 r8,i50,120

- , o77 )n1

851.613 69.88? - 921,500

$ 46.348.142 $ 2,230,913 $ - s 48,579,655
i0.464,t66 1,872.499 233,013 12.569,878

Balance Depreciatiorand
at Amortization

Balance

June 30.2010 Expense Reclassifications June 30,2011

4,107,637 S

4,243,0t1

2.584,6i9

446,886 $

616.65',1

2',t8,409

- s 4,554,523

- 4,8s9,658

- 2.862.948

664.647 99.195 153]!2
11.599.934 1.44t.047 - 13.040.981

4 Govet fiehtal Activities

Depreciation and amortization expense of govemmental

ended June 30, 201 I was charged to functions/progmms in
of activities as follows:

activities for the fiscal year

the accompanying statement
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General government

Public safefy

Public housing and welfare
Urban and economic development

Culture, recreation and education

Total depreciation ard amortization expenses

b') Business-tvpe Activities

Total
depreciatiol

expelse

s 42,210

1,193,5I8
522

Cost

begin.ing of
lisely€ar

$ 126.150

fisc.ly€ar

126.150

Busineswpe a.li,iti6:

Catital Ners, not being depreciated - lod
Toral capital Nets. not being depreialed

Capi&l asseri, being deprcciated:

Buildings, sttuctxres. md improvemenls

Iad improvements

M&hinery and equipmen! and nmiturc

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Total cost basis of@pital asseB

Accumulated depr@iation ed amonization:

Buildings. structurcs, ed improvemenls

Land improvements

Ma.hinery and equipment, dd
ftmiture and fixtures

Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital asts, business-type activities

126,i50 126.150

5,028,289

5 5.154.439

599

9,117
9,117

4,345,421

267,559

424,420

5.037.406

$ 5.163,5j6

4,344,828

261,559

4t5.902

atbeginning
of fiscal year

s 2,680,536

I75,718

2t4,328

€rpense

I38,832

11.322

Iisc.l year

$ 2,819,366

187,0.+0

19,02,1

169,178
(160.0611

Depreciation and amortization expense of business-type activities, amounting to $169,178

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was charged to the public housing and welfare

fu nction in Lhe accompan\ ing. stalement of acli! ilies.
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9, Lotrg-TermObligations

The general long-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 3 0, 20 I 1 is as follows:

G owthhenlo I d.litities :

beginni.gof

$ 370.000

34,088

! 9i7.156

General obligalion serial bonds

Municipal Relsue Colledion Ce.ter:
Law No. 146 ofoctober ll.200l

Compensated abs.nces
Total for govemmsial activilies

s 10.030.6r6

158.695

9r3,r68
$ I t.102,479

r 4,850.000 $ (124.000) $ 14.556.616

1,192,906

_!__ j{4r106_

(34,088) 124.607

(913,168) 1.192.906

_!__-Gt1!:56r _i_-]L!l!g)

B u s i n e s-E p e a ct i tit i e s

Mortgag€ notes payible
Mongage lod

Total for business'type actvilies
s 943,882

s 911.882 $ 81.678
$ (78.671) S 865.208

s {78_67.1) S 865.208

81.678

Historically, the general fund has been used to liquidate the notes payable to CRIM, the
Puerto Rico Health Services Adminisnation and the Puerto Rico Depatment of Treasury,

compensated absences, obligations under capital leases and any other ]ong_term liabilities
other than bonds.

^) Debt Limilation

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the contmcting ofdebts ofthe
Municipalit-v. Nevertheless, the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico also provide that:

. Direct obligations ofthe Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds) are backed

by the full faith, credit andtaxing power ofthe Municipality; and

. Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality if the amount of the

principal of, and the interest on, such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all
bonds and notes issued thereafter) which are payable in any fiscalyear, together with
any amount paid by the Municipality in the preceding fiscai year on account of bonds

or bond anticipation notes gtaranteed by the Municipality, exceed l0 perceot ofthe
total assessed value ofthe property located within the Municipality plus the balance

of the ad valorem ta.xes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable and bond

anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt
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b) Bonds Payable

The Municipality issues general obligation and public improvement serial bonds to
finance the acquisition, constructiol and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to

finance certain operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain

circumstances.

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth provide that the Municipality's public

debt will constitute a first claim on the available revenue ofthe Municipality. Public debt

is composed of bonds payable. The good faith, credit and taxing power of th€

Municipality are inevocably pledged for the prompt payment ofthe principal and interest

of bonds.

As more fully described in Note 4, the Municipality levies an annoal additional special
property tax of2.00 percent of the assessed value of personal and real property. The
proceeds of this additional special ta.x are deposited in a sinking fund established at the
Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico, fisca1 agent, whereby sufrficient funds

are set aside to redeem the bonds payable ofthe Municipality in minimum alnual and

semiannual principal and interest payments. The collections of this special tax are

recoded in the Municipality's debt service fund.

For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds represent the total
principal to be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30,2011:

Outstanding
balanc€

General Oblisation Bonds:

1991 serial bonds (face arnount of $572,000) due in anaual principal
installments ranging from $14,000 to MI,000; plus interest at 5.00%
through July, 1,2016. $

2000 serial bonds (face amount of $870,000) due in annual principal
installments rangiDg liom $40,000 to $100,000; plus interest at

variable rates (4-30% at June 30,2011) through July, 1,2011.

1996 serial bonds (face amount of $1,040,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $15,000 to $90,000; plus intercst at vadable
mtes (6.30% at June 10, 201 l) through July, 1, 2020.

2001 serial bonds (face amount $575,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $10,0001o $50,000; plus interest at variable
rates (4.30% at June i0, 2011) through July, 1, 2026.

18.1,000

100,000

665,000
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Outstanding
balaoce

2002 serial bonds (face amount $310,000) due in annral principal
installments ranging from $5,000 to $10,000; plus interest at variable
rates (4.50% at June 30, 201 l) through July l, 2027.

1996 serial bonds (face amount of $332,000) due in annual principal
installments mnging from $6,000 to $20,000; plus interest at variable
rates (4.50% at J ne30,201l)&roughJuly l,2028.

2005 serial bonds (face amount of $465,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $10,00010 $35,000; plus interest at variable
rates (4.50% at June 30, 201l ) through July 1, 2029.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2005-2006 (face amount of
$485,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to
$35,000; plus interest at variable rates (4.50% at June 30,2011)
through July i,2030.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2007-2008 (face amount of
$800,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $25,000
to $85,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30,2011)
through July l, 2022.

Municipal general obligatrons bond series 2006-2007 (face amount of
$380,000) due in annual principal installments ranging fiom $5,000 to
$35,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30,2011)
through July 1,2032.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2005-2006 (face amount of
$190,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to
$20,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30,2011)
thrcugh July 1, 2021.

Municipal general obligations note series 2007-2008 (face amount of
$2,965,000) due in annual principal installments mnging from $60,000
to $265,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30,2011)
through Ju)y i,2029.

Ordinance 3 series 2006-2007 from Govemment Development Bank
of Puerto Rico as a loan for constructioo of a housing development
project at Caonillas Ward, Aibonito, P.R.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2010-2011 (face amount of
$I,435,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000
to $20,000; plus interest ai variable rates (1.53% at June 30, 20ll)
through July 1, 2021.

260,000

263,000

405.000

440,000

710,000

365,000

155,000

2,840,000

2.,844,616
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OutstandiIlg
balance

Municipal general obligations bond se.ies 2010-2011 (face amount of
$2,710,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000
to $20,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30,2011)
through July l,2021.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2010-2011 (face amount of
$705,000) due in annual principal installments ranging fiom $5,000 to

$20,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30,2011)
through July 1, 2021.

2,7r 0,000

705,000

$ 11i!!.116Total bonds payables

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GDB and are based

on the fluctuation of GDB'S weighted average rate for its commercial paper Program.
Under this program, GDB issues commercial paper: (l) in the taxable and tax-exempt

markets of the United States of America, (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to
corporations having ta\ exemptions under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives
Acts and, which qualily for benefits provided by the former Section 936 of the U.S.

lntemal Revenue Code. Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds payable

are as follows:

Fiscal year

ending
June 30! Principal Interest Total

370,000 667,398 i,037,398

52',7,6',75 '.729,002 1,256,67',7

574,615 705,$1 1,280,106

592,675 67',7,611 1,210,286

640,458 628,634 t,269,092

20t'7-2021 3,308,379 2,831,215 6,139,595

2022-2026 3,530,i79 1,943,066 5,413,445

202',7-203t 3.864.379 981,111 4,845,490

2032-2036 1,147,995 418,016 1,566,011

---.11E!f1L --- 
j!!L1!l- 

-- r1,::ng,lPt

At June 30, 201 l, accrued interest payable on bonds amounted to $291,740.

b) Law No. 146 - On September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto

Rico, enlered into a financing agreement with GDB pursuanr to the provisions of Law No.
146 ol October 11, 2001, as amended (Law No- 146). The Purpose of this financing
agreement was to extinguish in advance certain bonds payable issued by Public Finance

20t2
2013

20t4
2015

2016
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June 30, 2011

Corporation (PFC), a subsidiary of the Govemment Development Banl for Puerto fuco,
which werc originally issued to pay certain paoperty ta"x receivables owned by the

municipalities ofPuerto Rico through 1996, which were acquired by PFC with recouse.
The outstanding principal amounted to $124,607 atJune 30,2011.

c) Mortgage Notes Payable (business-4,pe scrivitics)

The long-term debt of Las Flores Apartments (FHA and HUD Project No. 63-005-660-43-

3572) consist of a mortgage note, secured by the Federal Housing Administration and by a
first mortgage on rental property. Principal and interests in monthly installments of $11,654

are payable flom the prcceeds ofthe rent collected from the tenants. The Fedeml Sovemment
provides housing assistance pa),ments to qualified tenants to subsidize most of the monthly
rent. This housing project is administered by a private entity. At June 30, 2011, the
outstanding principal balance ofthe mortgage note amounted to $865,208.

10. Employees' Retirement Systems

a) Plafi Description

Tbe Municipality's employees participate in the Employees' Retirement System of the

Govemment of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a cost-sharing multi_

employer (as related to the Municipality's reporting entity) defined pension plan

established by the Common*ealth. Substantially all full-time employees of the

Commonwealth and substantially all municipalities are covered by ERS under the terms

ofPublic Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951, as amended (Act No. 447). All regular and

temporary employees of the Municipality become plan members of ERS at the date of
employment, while it is optional for ofiicers appointed.

ERS members, other than those joining it after March 31, 1990, are etigible for the

benefi ts described below:

. RetirefientA nuil!

ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the following age:

Policemen and firemen:
50 with 25 years ofcredited service
58 wirh 10 years ofcredited ser"r'ice

Other employees:
55 with 25 years ofcredited senice
58 with l0 years ofcredited service

ERS members are eligible for monthly benefit payments delermined by the

application of the sripulated benefit ratios to the member's average compensation.

Average compensation is computed based on the highest 36 months ofcomPensation
recognized by ERS. The annuity, for which a member is eligible, is limited to a
minimum of $300 per month and a maximum of 75 percent of the average

compensation,
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. Merit Annui,)

ERS membe$ are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of30 years or more of
credited service. The annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limit€d to a

minimum of65 percent and a ma.ximum of75 percent ofthe average compensation.

. Deferred Retiremenl Anrtuily

A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipality after
having accumulated a minimum of ten years of credited service qualifies for
retirement benefits provided his/her contributions are left in ERS until reaching 58

years ofage.

. Coordinaled Plon

On the coordinated plan, by the time the employee reaches 65 years old and begins to

receive social security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced by the following:

(a) $165 per month, ifretired with 55 years ofage and 30 years of credited

service.

(b) $l lO per month, if retired with less than 55 years of age and 30 years of
credited service.

(c) All other between $82 and $100 per month.

(d) Disab;lity annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age

65 and in some cases can be reduced over $165 per month.

. Non-Cootdinated Plan

On the non-coordinated plan the participating employee and does not have any

change on the pension benefits upon rec€iving social security benefits-

. Reversionary Annuiqt

An ERS member, upon retirement, could elect to rcceive a reduced retirement

annuity giving one or more benefit payments to his,/her dependents- The life annuily
payments would stari after the death of the .etiree for an amount not less than $240
per year or Sreater than the annuiry payments being received by the retiree.

. Occupatiorurl Disabil@ Annuity

A participating employee, who as a direct result of the performance of his/her

occupation is totally and pemanently disable4 is eligible for a disability annuity of
50 percent ofthe compensation received at the time ofthe disability
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. Non-oceupational Disability Annu@

A participating employee, totally and permanently disabled for causes not related to
his/her occupation and with no less than I 0 years of credited service, is eligible for an

annuity of 1.50 percent ofthe average compensation ofthe first 20 years of qedited

services, increased by 2 percent for every additional year of credited service in excess

of20 year.

. Death Benefils

Occapalional:

(a) survMne spouse annuity equal to 50 percent of th€ panicipating
employee's salary atthe date of the death.

(b) Children - $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a
ma-ximum benefit per family of $100.

Non-occupational:

Ben€ficiarv the contributions and interest accumulated as ofthe date of the death

plus an amount equal to the annual compensation at the time ofthe death.

Beneficiary with suviving spouse age 60 or over and a child, I8 or under, up to 30

p€rcent (60 percent, if not covered under Title II of the Social Security Act)
(increased to 50 percent effective January l, 2005) of retiree's pension or otherwis€

the excess, ifany, ofthe accumulated contributions at the time ofretirement over tle
total annuity benefits received before death, limited to a minimum of$750.

. Refunds

A participating employee who ceases his/her employment with the Municipality
without the right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the contributions
to ERS plus any interest eamed thereon.

. Co oflivirlg Adjt stmenrfot Pensio Benefils

Public Act No. l0 of May 21, 1992 (Act No. 10) provided for increases of3 percent

every three or more years of retirement. Act No. 10 requires fu(her legislation to
grant this increase every three years subject to the prcsentation of actuarial studies

regarding its costs and the source of financing. To protect the financial health of
ERS, the increase $anted duriog 2001 and the one granted on January 1,2005 are

being financed by the Municipality and the other participating employers.

To avoid any economic impact on ERS, the employers are responsible for
contributing to ERS the amounts to cover the benefit payments and the employer and
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employee contributions with respect to the participants covered until the participants

reach the normal retirement age.

. Ar endment to Act No. 447 efJecttue January 1, 2000 to create a Delined
Contribution Plan

On September 24, 1999, Public Act No. 305, an :unendment to Act No. 447, was

enacted to establish a defined contribution plan, known as System 2000, to cover
employeesjoining ERS on or after January 1, 2000.

Employees that participated in the original plan as of December 31, 1999, had the
opportunity to elect to either stay in the defined benefit plan or hansfer to Syst€m
2000- Employees thatjoined the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, were only
allowed to become mernbers ofSystem 2000.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance
plan. Under this new plan, there is a pool of plan assets, which is invested by the
System, together with those ofthe cosFsharing multi-employer defined benefit plan.
Neitherthe Commonwealth nor the Municipality guarantee hnefits at retirement age.

The annuity is based on a formula which assumes that each fiscal y€ar the
employee's conaribution (with a minimum of 8.28 percent of the employee's salary
up to a mzximum of 10 percent) is invested as instructed by the employee in an

account which either: (1) eams a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Matuity
Treasury Notes, (2) earns a rate equal to 75 percent of the retum of the ERS'
investment portlolio (net of management fees), or (3) eams a combination of both
allematives. Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of
defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits are

not granted under System 2000, rather are provided to those participants that
voluntarily elect to participate in a private insurance long-tenn disability program.
The employers' contributions (9.28 percent ofthe employee's salary) with rcsp€ct to
employees under System 2000 will continue and will be used to fund the cost-sharing
multi-employer defi ned benefit plan.

System 2000 reduced the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those employees
who joined the current plan on or after January 1, 2000.

Historically, the state govemment ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico has reported
ERS and System 2000 in its basic financial statements as pension trust fuods.
Accordingly, the Commonwealth is currently assuming any actuarial deficiency that
may exist or arise related to the Mun;cipaliay's participating employees because ERS
does not allocate to the Municipality any actuarial deficiencies pertaining to
participating municipai employees. The Municipality is only required by law to
make statutory contributions at the rates detailed below.
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. Recent Amendme ts to Act No.447

The Senate and the House of Representatives of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
have the authority for eslablishing or amending the contribution requirements of
System 2000 by approving the necessary amendments or laws, subject to the final
approval ofthe Govemoi ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico.

In June and July 2003, the Govemor ofthe Commonwealth signed three Public Acts
that provided the following cettain benefits to retirees:

(a) Increase il minimum monthly pension payments to $300, effective
January 1,2005.

(b) Triennial3 percent increase in allpensions, effective January 1,2005.

(c) Increase in widow and/or beneficiaries to 50 percent of the beoefit
received by the deceased pensioner, effective January 1,2005.

All the benefib granted will be funded thrcugh budgetary assignments in the

Muoicipality's general fund with respect to its retired employees.

The Board of Trustees of ERS app.oved, effective November 1?, 2003, an increase in
the amount granted on personal loans to participating employees fiom $3,000 to
$5,000.

b') Furrding Poli.y

The contribution requirement to ERS is established by law and is not actuarially
determined. These contributions are as follows:

Municipality and 9.28 percent ofapplicable payroll
other employers
Employees:
Coordination plan: 5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600

per yeat plus 8.28 percent gross salary in
excess of$6,600.

Supplementation 8.28 percent ofgross salary. This is the
plao: only choice available to policemen,

firemen and mayors

The contribution requirement to System 2000 is also established by law and is not
actuarially determined- These contributions are as follows:

Municipality and 9.28 percent ofapplicable palroll
other employers
Employees: 5.78 percent ofgrcss salary up to $6,600

per year, plus 8.28 percent grcss salary in
excess of$6,600
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11. Comrritments and Contingencies

The Municipality has reported, outstanding encumbrances amounting to $661,118 in the
general fund at June 30, 201 L The Municipality intends to honor these encumbrsnces,
which will continue to be liquidated under the culrent year's budget during a lapse period

that extends into the subsequent fiscal year.

12. Fund Balances

As ofJune 30 2011, fund balance is comprised of the following:

Special

- Fun.l balaacet:

Debt joint C.pital communities Other

Ceneral service resolution projects t.ust goYernnental

ftr.d fund fund fund futrds ftnds Total

Restricted:

- Debrsenice $ - 1,799,180 _ ' S 1,799,180

capitarproje.rs - - 3,072,259 8,82i,463 1t,891,122

Federal firded p.ogms 774 1.924.218 1,925,052

- 
Assigned for

General govemment 661.118 _ 66l.118

unassisned ___!gIL ________: __________-- 

--j- 

86,e66

Total fund balances S 748.084 1.799.180 i.072.259 8.825,463 774 1.924,278 $ 16,370.038
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Budget and Achal - Budgetary Bash - Geneml Fund

Fiscal Ye3, Ended June 30.2011

original Final

Budg€t€d amoutrts

Actual Variance

amounts wilh final

(budgeary budget-

basis) over (under)

Revetrues

Properly taxes

Muoicipal license taYes

Sales and taxes

Constauction excise ta\es

Charges for seNices

Iniergovemmental granls and contributions

Interest

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Cunent:

Geneml government

Public safety

Urban and economic development

Health and sanitation

Culhne. reareation and education

Public housing and welfar€

Capial outlay

Total expendiiures

Revenues over (under) expendifures

Other fiMtrciDg sources (llses):

Transfers from other 6mds

Transfers to other fuods

Total other financing soorces, net

Revenues and other financing sources

over ex!€nditures and other financing uses

9,591,,166 10,150,511 10,238,732 88,201

2,209,825

r,600,000

28i,000

190,000

38,000

4.129.523

56,000

1,086,1l8

2,329,576

I,',76t,323

538,605

179,411

59,503

3,896,944

lL7,867

1,267,302

2,209.825

t,189,77t

604,054

323,249

74,495

3,946,199

136.618

1,t54,501

(l r9,751)

28,448

65,M9

143,838

49.235

r 8,771

(112,801)

4,45 t,807

124,108

3.784.286

i.017,991

216,272

4,448.393

109,039

4,211,879

1,096.485

218.735

3,589,14s

85,72t

3,550,706

359,3s9

1,042,383

208,0r6

l9l.t 85

(8i9,248)

(23,3 r8)

\727,173)
359,359

(54,102)

(r0,7r9)

l9l.l85
9,s94,466 10,150,511 9,026,515 (1,124,016)

1,211,217 1,2t2,2t7

214.961 2r1,961

214,961 211,961

t,427,178 $ I,427,118

The acconpanyingnates to the basiclnantial stutenents are inegal pa ofthk stdte ent.
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June 30,201I

FederalCFDA Pass-through
Number Gmntor's Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Ilousing and Urban
DevelopmeDt

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher

Pass-through of the State-Office of the
N4unicipal Affairs Commissionerr -
Community Development Block
Grant/State - Administered Small Cities

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid
Rehousing Program (ARRA Funded)

Total U.S. Depa.tment of Housing and
Urban Developmenl

Total Federal Financial Assistance

14.182 RQ46R000013

14.871 RQ-059

$545,336

$223,533

14.228

14.25',7

2011-004103

FR-5307-N,01

128,344

188,946

1,686,159

$ 1,6!!J!e
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MUNICIPALITY OF ATBONITO

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 201 I

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards includes the federal gant activity of
the Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Pue.to Rico and is presented on the accrual

basis of accounting. The Municipality of Aibonito reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the

Municipality's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Govemments, and

Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from
amounts presented in our used in the prepamtion ofthe basic financial statements.

Relationship to the Basic Financial Statemenis

Revenues and expenditures of the federal awards are included in the Municipality's basic financial
statem€nts within the Capital Projects Fund, the Proprietary Fund and the Nonmajor Govemmental
Funds. The reconciliation between the expenditures in the basic financial statements and

expenditures in the Schedule ofExp€nditures ofFedeml Awards is as follows:

Expenditures in the basic financial statements:

2.

Capital Projects Fund
Other govemmental funds
Proprietary Fund

Less: Non-federal expenditures
2,248,391
(s62,232)

$ r,092,641
605,388
550,362

Total expenditures in the Schedule of
Fedeml Awards $1,6!!Jl9
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO IIICO
MUNIcIPALITY or AIBoNITo

Report on Compliance and on lntemal Control over Financial Reporling Based on an

Audir ;f Financiat Statements performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards

June 30, 20l l

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipality ofAibonito
Aibonito. Puerto Rico

we have audited the accompanying financial stalements ofth€ govemmental activities. each major fund,

and aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico as ofand for the year ended June 30, 2Ol l, which collectively comprise the Municipaljty's

basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 28, 2011 We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

rhe standards appticable to financial audits contaioed in Govemmental Auditing Standards' issued by the

Comptroller General ofthe United States.

Intemal Conrol Over Financial Repellillg

In planning and performing our aualit, ue considered Municipality's intemal control over financial

reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on the

financiai statemenrs, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Municipality ofAibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico intemal control over financial reporting'

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Municipality s intemal control over

financial repo(ing.

our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the

preceding paragaph and was not designed to identiry all deficiencies in intemal control over financial

ieporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaklesses and therefore, therc can be no

assurance that ali deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have beeo identified'

However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs' we identitied

certain deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we conside.to be material weaknesses

aod other deficiencies that ue consider to be significant deficiencies

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the d€sign or op€ration of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detec,aod correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weak ess is a deficiency, or a combination

ofdeficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibilily that a material misstatement

ofthe entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. we
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be

material weakresses as items I l-01 to I1-03.

Compliance add Other Matters

As part ofobtaining reasonable assumnce about

of Puerto Rico financial statements are free
whether Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth
of material misstatemen! we performed tests of its
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compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and gmntagrcements, noncompliance

withwhich could have i direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,

_rd acco.iingly, J" do not 
"*p.""" 

such an opinion The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncomplian; or other matters that are required to be repo.ted undet Gotemment Auditing Standards

and which are described in the accompanying schedule of Findings and Questioned costs as items I 1-04

thru t 1-08.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Municipalit'y of Aibonito of the

Commonweaith of Puerto Rico, in a separate letter dated November 2E, 201 l.

The Municipality ofAibonito ofthe commonwealth of Puerto Rico response to the findings ideotified in

our audit is desciibed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit

Municipality's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This rcport is intended solely for the information aod use ofthe Municipality's management, municipal

legislarure, and tederal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to he and should

Toa Alt4 Puerto Rico
November 28,2011

Starnp No. 2596734
was affixed to the
original report.

W- tt'
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Certifed Public Acco-untants and Business Consultants

COUMONWf,ALTH OF PUI]RTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY oFAlBoliITo

Report on compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major

program anal on Intemal Control over compliance in accordance with OMB Ci.cular A-133

June 30- 2011

To the Hono.able Mayor
and the Municipal Legislaturc
Municipality of Aibonito
Aibonito, Puerto Rico

Compliance

We have audited the Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puefto Rico (the Municipality)

compliance with the Opes ofcompliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance

Suppte ent that couid have direct and material effect on each of the Municipality of Aibonito of the

Commonwealth of Pueno Rico major federal progBms for the year ended June 30, 2011. Municipality's

major federal pro$ams are identified io the Summary of Auditor's Results Section ofthe accompanying

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirem€nts of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grans appiicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Municipality's compliance

hased on our audii.

we conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards Senerally accepted in dle

United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits coolained n Gowm ent Auditing

Standards, issxdby the Compholler Generat of the United States; and OMB C;tc|Jllt A-133, Audits of
States, Local Gover me ts, ancl Non-Ptufit ()rganizations Those standa.ds and OMB Circular A-133

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance

with the types ofcomplia;ce rcquirements rcfered to above thal could have a direct and material effect

on a maj;; federal piogram occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about

Municipility's compliance with those requirements and performing such oiher procedures as we

consialered ;ecessary in the circumstances. We believe that ou. audit provides a reasonable basis for our

oplnion. Our audit does not provid€ a legal determination of Municipality's compliance with those

As described in items l1-05, 11-06, and I 1-07 in the accomPanying Schedule ofFindings and Questioned

Costs, the Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. did not comply with

requi.ements regarding Equipment and Real Property Managementi cash management' and Davis-Bacon

Aci, that are applicable to iti Commu:rity Development Block Grant State Program. Compliance *ith
such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the Municipaliry, to comPly with the requirements

applicable to that pro$am.
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As described in item 11-08 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs' the

Municipaliq of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, did nor comply with requirements

regarding the finaacial reportinS, that is applicable to its Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment Ptoglam'

CJmpliaice with such requi.erient is ,""eisary, in our opinion, for the Municipality, to comply with the

requirements applicable to that program.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraphs, the Municipality of
Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, comPlied, in all material respects, \r'ith the compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal

programs for the year ended June 30, 201 l.

Intemal Control Over Compiiance

Management of Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is rcsponsible for

estabfthing and maintai;ing effective intemal control over compliance with the rcquirements of laws,

regulations; contracts, and gmnts applicable to fedeml programs. In planning and performing our audit,

wJ considered Municipality,s intemal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a

direct and material effect on a major federal pro$am to deiermioe the auditing procedures fot the purpose

of expressing our opinion on co;pliance and to test and report on intemal control over compliance io

,""o.d*"" --ith 
OMB Circular a-t::, brt not for the pulpose of expressing an op;nion on the

effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Municipality's intemal control over compliance.

our consideration of int€mal control over compliance was for the limited purpose descdbed in the

preceding paragaph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance

ihat migit be sfunificant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that

all defrciencies, siglificant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified However, as

discussed below, wi identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over compliancethat we consider to

be material \.veaknesses.

A deJicie c, in intemal co lrol orer compliance exists when the design or opetation of a control over

co.niliance does not allow management oi employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned

functions, to prevent, or detect tnd correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a

federal program on a timely basis- A material weakness in inter al control orer compliance is a

deficieniy, or combination oi deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance' such that there is a

reasonabL possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

program wiil not be prevented, or detected a;d corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies

in iitemal contro! over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

costs as items I l-01, 11-02 and 11-03 to be material weaknesses

A significant delciency in internal control o|el' compliance is a d€ficiency, or a combination of
defici"encies, in intemai control over compliance with a type of comPliance requirement of a federal

program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important

lno"rgh to.e.it attention by those charged with govemance. we consider the deficiencies in intemal

contr;l over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as

items 11-C4 and to be a significant deficiency.
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Municipality's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying

Schedule of Findings and Questiooed Costs. W€ did no. audi! the Municipality's responses and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use ofthe Municipality's management, Municipal
legislature, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Toa Alta, Puerto Rico
November 28- 2011

Stamp No. 2596735
was affixed to the
o ginal rcport. W- ts'

81

Eommzlm,tr,cPAPSC



CoMMonl EALTH oFPUERTo RICO
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs
June 30,2011

- Section I - Summary ofAuditors' Results

Financial Statements

T)?e ofauditor's report issued: Qualified
Intemal conftol over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified? __L yes _ no
Signifi cant deficiency (ies) identifi ed

not considered to be material weakness? yes X none reported

- Noncompliance materialto financial statements X yes no
noted?

- Federal Awards

Intemal Control over major programs:

- Material weakness (es) identified? X yes _ no
Signifi cant defi ciency (ies) identifi ed

not considered to be material weaknesses? X yes _ none reported

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance
For major programs: Qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in acco.dance with
CircularA-133, Section .510(a)? ____L yes _ no

Identifi ca[ion of major progmms:

- CFDA Numbers

14.182

14.228

Name ofFederal Proqram or Cluster

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments

Community Development Block Grant/State - Administered Small
Cities Program

- Doll". rl*shold used to d;stinguish
Between Type A and Tlpe B progmms:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditeel

$300.000

yes Lno
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Section tr - Financial Statemert tritrdings

The current year findings and questioned costs were

discussed with the Municipality's management which
generally concurred with our comments and

recommendations. The Municipality of Aibonito will
respond to the following findings through the issuance of
a separate letter addressed to the Cognizant Agency.

1I-01 DDFICIENCIES IN TEE UNIFORM ACCOI]NTING SYSTEM AND

ACCOI]NTING RECORDS
OTI{ER

The Uniform Accounting System (UAS) and the accounting records currently used by the Municipality

do not have the necessary capabilities, procedures, intemal controls and records to ensure accurate

financial reporting and to prepare the Municipality's basic financial statements and federal progmms'

reports in conformity rvith Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States oaAmerica for

State anal Local Govemments (GAAP). The UAS is a system promulgated by the Office of the

Commissioner ofMunicipal Affairs of Puerto Rico (OCAM, by its Spanish acronyms), a govemmental

entity created by law to provide technical assistance to the municipalities of Puerto Rico in several

administrative and fiscal matters.

The Municipality's UAS mostly provides for the recording of revenue collections, disbutsemenls and

other limited tmnsactions. In addition, the accounting records are not fully integrated, and a double entry

system is not generally followed. Accounting records are maintained on the cash basis and budgetary

iccounting basis (nvo accounting bases that differ significantly from GAAP) and do not comply with

Statement No. 34 ofthe Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 34), as amended.

The following specific additional conditions were noted in relation to the UAS ofthe Municipality:

. Accounting transactions are curently accounted foi simultaneously th.ough manual and

computerized accounting systems for which no r€conciliation procedures arc made among them,

incl;ding the accounting records currently used by federal programs ['hich are not reconciled

with the UAS. The balance sheet accounts in the UAS are not reconciled and adjusted to conform

them to the Municipality's audited basic financial statements.

. The UAS does not have the capabilities of: (1) recording and processing alltypes ofcapital asset

transactions, principally the accounting of depreciation and arno.tization expense, (2) recording

and processing all transactions related to revenues susceptible to accrual (accounts rcceivable)

and, (3) recording and processing transactions related to long_term debt' including bonds and

notes payable, obiigations under capital leases, reserves for federal cost disallowances, legal

claims and judgments, compensated absences, etc.

. No adequate year-end closing procedures are made to account for all transactions affecting all
funds.
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. No adequate segregation is made between items representing actual accounts payable and those

representing outstanding encumbrances. Accordingly, material amounts of unrecorded liabilities
are generally recorded at fiscal year-end.

. The management of the federal prcgrams administered by the Municipality maintains separate

accounting records for each federal program, whicb are not reconciled with the UAS (the olficial
accounting syst€m of the Municipality).

. No adequate and complete accounting records are kept for inter-fund balances and transactions.

. The audit adjustments rcsulting from Single Audits are not completely posted in the UAS.

The basic financial statements of the Municipality must be prepared using the financial information
obtained from various municipal departments and accounting records outside of the official UAS, and

from information obtained from regulators and independent third parties. In addition, the Department of
Finance does not maintain accounting records and working papers supporting the balances and

disclosures reported in the basic financial statements, principally those related to govemment-wide
financial reporting.

The Departmeflt of Finance does not maintain accounting records supporting the following procedures

performed as part ofthe preparation ofthe basic financial statements ofthe Municipality:

. The conve$ion of accounting records from the cash basis of accounting to the modified accrual

basis ofaccounting used by governmental funds;

The conversion of govemmental funds from the modified accrual basis to the accrual basis of
accounting used by govemment-wide financial statements; and

Working papers and analyses of significant balances reported in dre basic financial statements,

such as capital assets, accounts receivable (municipal licenses, grants and contributions, etc.),

defered revenues, accounts payable, and long-term obligations (for which the geneml practice is

to rely upon the notifications received liom the Govemment D€velopment Bank for Puerto Rico,
the Pueto Rico Trcasury Department, the Federal Govemment and the Municipal Revenue

Collection Center for the balance of its outstanding debt and the withholding for its debt service).

CRITERIA:

Article 8.010(b) of Law No. 8l of August 30, 1991, known as the Autonomous Mnlicipalities Act oJ

Puerto Rico (Law No- 81), states that the Municipality must maintain its fund accounting in accordance

with Accounting Principles Gene.ally Accepted in the United States ofAmerica (GAAP), as Promulgated
by the Covemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the National Committee on Govemmental

Accounting (NCGA) and the Govemmental Acco nting, Auditing and Financial Reporting book
(commonly known as Blue Book).

In addition, Article 8.010(c) of Law No. 8l states that uniform accounting system used by th€

Municipality must: (l) produce reliable reports and financial staternents, (2) provide complete

8.1



CoMMoNWEALTH oF PTJERTo RIco
MUNTCIPALITY or AIBoNITo

Schedule ofFindi.gs and Questioned Costs
June 30.2011

information about the results of operations of the Municipaliry, and (3) includ€ the necessary intemal
conftols to account all funds, capital assets and other assets ofthe Municipality.

Due to the conditions .eferred to above, the prcparation ofthe Municipality's basic financial statements as

of and for the fiscal year ended June I0, 20 1 1 was more difficult and less efficient than would have been

in ordinary circumstances. A significant amount of adjusting entries had to be made to the financial data

aod reports processed through the UAS in order to properly account for unrecorded transactions and to
corect hansactions recorded in the wrong accounting period. Since the accounts and other accounting

recods of the UAS are not designed to Fovide all the information necessary to prepare the
Municipality's basic financial statements, the Municipality had to obtain and process fmancial data from
several sources outside the UAS. These conditions represent material weaknesses io the Municipality's
intemal controls over financial reporting.

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

These conditions occured because the accounting system cur.ently used by the Municipality has not been

updated in over 15 years and, accordingly, the Municipality has not implemented an accounting system in
compliance with the current accounting model established by GASB Statement No. 34, as amended. The
continued failure to have an adequate accounting system does not allow the Municipality to have timely
and accurat€ financial information for its decision making process. In addition, financial reports prepared

may have erors or omissions that will affect future financial decisions. Another effect is the use of
inaccuate financial information as a base fo. the preparation of annual budgets, which, thereforc, may
result in budgetary compliance problems.

RECOMMENDATION:

We recommend the Municipality to explore different altematives for &e implementation of a new

accounting system in compliance with all applicable federal and local laws and regulations. This process

should include only accounting systems that will enable the Municipalit, to prepare its basic financial
statements in a timely manner and in conformity with GAAP. The systems to be evaluated must provide
the necessary financial information that will serve as the basis for the effective control of revenu€s,

disbusements, assets and liabilities, and the reporting of such items in the Municipality's financial
statements, including:

. The implementation ofa double entry accounting system, the integration ofall subsidiary ledgers
and the reconciliation with the.ecords maintained for federal funds;

. The prcparation of pedodic financial reports to be submitted to the Director of Finance, the
Mayor, the Municipal Legislature and the federal grantors; and

. Adequate training to all accounting penonnel to improve the understanding ofthe system and to
promote operational eflicimcy

The Department of Finance must establish and document new accounting policies and procedures

addressed to correct the non-compliance situations refe.red to above. Accounting policies and procedures

shall be promulgated by an appropriate level ofmanagement to emphasize their importznce and authority.
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The documentation ofsuch accounting policies and procedures shall be updated periodically according to
a predetermined schedule.

11-02 DEFICIf,NCIES IN ACCOUNTING RXCOR)S OF CAPITAL ASSETS

The Municipality does not have and effective system to account for the accurate recording of fixed assets.
There are no intemal controls to ensure that all capitalizable expenditues and property dispositions are
recorded in the capital assets subsidiary ledger. A significant portion of the real property, personal
property and infmstructure acquired or constructed with federal and local funds is not currently recorded
in the capital assets subsidiary ledger. Accordingly, the Municipality has not maintained complete and
adequate records over capital assets.

The Municipality has not performed periodical physical inventories of its capital assets (realproperty, and
infrastructure). As part ofour intemal control and substantive tests, we noted that the Municipality has
not orgarized and perfomed a physical inventory during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 for the
abovementioned assets. Accordingly, the capital assets recorded in the accompanying statement of net
assets do not include several items of the rcal property and the infrastructure assets, which should be
rcpofted as part of the capital assets of the Municipality according to Statement No. 34 of the
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 34), as amended, Basic Finoncial Statements .nd
Monagement's Discussion and Analysis for Srate and Local Governments.

The following additional conditions were ooted in relation to capital assets:

. The Municipality's capital asset subsidiary ledger is not reviewed or updated on a regula. basis
for the purposes of id€ntiiring and removing those items that have been impaired, taken out of
service or provide no future benefit. As a result, the capital assets subsidiary ledger does aot
accurately provides sufficient and competent evidence ofthe existence, ownership and valuation
ofthe capital assets owned by the Municipality.

. The Municipality does not have formal accoulting and control procedures and policies to ensure
compliance wilh the capital asse6 requirements established by CASB No. 34 and Statement No.
42 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Bo^td, Accounting and Repolting for lmpairments
ofcapital Assets and Insurance Recoyeries (GASB No. 42).

. The subsidiary ledger ofcapital assets is nor periodically reconciled with the properry subsidiary
ledgers maintained by the Municipality's seveml individual federal financially assisted pm$arns.

CRITf,RIA:

Article 9.002 oflaw No. 81 of August 30. 1991, known as the lrronor ous Mlmicipalities Act of Puelto
Rr?o (Law No. 81), states that all municipalities must preparc and maintain an updated subsidiary ledger
(record) ofall real properties.

In addition, Chapter VII, Section 23, of the Re8?lation for Municipal Admrrrirlarib4 requires that each
Municipality must maintain an adequate control of capital assets through annual physical invento es. In
addition, any differences between physical inventory arnounts and subsidiary records must be jnvestigated

and adjusted. Considering that according to accounting reco.ds of ihe Municipality, the capital assets
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represent the most significant assets ofthe Municipality, there is a significant rjsk of unauthodzed use or
disposition of capital assets b€cause therc are no adequate intemal controls in place to ensure
accountability ofcapital assets by depanment or federal program.

Chapter VII, Sections 3,4, 14, 15 and 21 of the Regulatioll for Mwicipal Administrution estzblish the
following guidelines regarding property management:

. Section 3 €stablishes that the Finance Director is responsible for the accountability of the capital
assets acquired by the Municipatity through purchases or donations.

Section 4 establishes that the Municipal Property Administmtor shall be responsible to the Mayor
and the Finance Director for $e direct administration, use and maintenance ofthe entire real and
personal proF,erty owned by the Municipality.

Section l4(l) establishes that all municipal property shall be numbered and identified as to
ownership by the Municipal Property Administrator.

. Section 15(l) establishes that the Municipal P.operty Administrator is responsible for accurately
maintaining the central property records.

. Section 2l(c) establishes that management shall write-off from the property records all prop€rty
and equipment sold or disposed of when certified by the lntemal Auditor of the Municipality
upon determination that such disposal is adequate.

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

These instances of non-compliance occured because the Property Division of the Municipality has not
enforced the requirement to perform a capital assets inventory and to ensure the proper accountability of
capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30,2011. Accordingly, the Municipality's intemal
controls in place over capital assets are not designed to effectively account for capital assets, since it do
not allow for the rcconciliation of detailed property records with the general ledger. These inadequate
property intemal controls may expose the Municipality to questioned or disallowed costs by the federal
govemment for lost or stolen property. This condition represents a material weakness in the
Municipality's iotemal controls over fi nancial reporting.

Furthermore, this situation represents a significant risk of loss of capital assets because there is a lack of
accountability for acquired capital assets. Any federall), funded capital assets lost would need to be
repaid to the federal govemment with municipal firnds.

R.ECOMMENDATION:

A physical inventory of the Municipality's capital assets should be taken as soon as possible and
subsequently on annual basis. Physical inventory amounts should be reconciled with the capital assets
recorded in the subsidiary ledgers- Furthermore, the Mayor may issue an executive order to require
compliance with this requirement. For these purposes, the Property Division of the Municipality must
require from each Municipal Department that acquires or manage capital assets to submit a report
including a full description of the asset, location, use, source of funds used to acqui.e the asset,
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responsible Personnel, cost and any other Pertinert data required by state.and.local regulations This

infirmation should be reconciled with the-monthly disbursements (capital outlays) made against the

budgetary accounts useil for property acquisitions. Sales or other dispositions must also be made only

ufoi 
"pp.or"t 

of th" n4uniciial 
-Proierty-Administrator 

and the Finance Director, and should be carried

out by persons other than the users and through public announcements or bids'

We also recommend that the subsidiary ledger of capital assets be updated on a monthly basis for the

write-off of non-operational, firlly depreciatea, or impaired items. Having such a procedure in place will

ensure that the Municipality has an accurate record of its capital assets and will ensure that gains and

Iosses on disposals are recorded in the proper accounting period.

We also recommend that the subsidiary ledger shall be periodically reconciled with the property

subsidiary ledgers maintained by the Municipaiity's several individual federal programs'

To prcvide greater control over the recording of capital asset additions and retirements, lle also

recommend tie Municipality to maximize the use of the Assetma,x software package to automate the

recording of capital assets along with automatically computing depreciation exp€nse for financial

reportini p,rrposis. The use of such software package would improve the overall efficiency within the

accounting function and allow for departmental reporting of depreciation expense, including federal

prograrns.

11.03 LACK OF MONITORING AND FRAT]D PRX\'trNTION ACTIVITIES

As part of oul evaluation of intemal controls ofthe Municipality we noted that the Municipality have not

designed, documented nor placed in opemtions specific intemal conhols and procedures designed to

prev;nt fraual and cenain tlpes ofmisappropriation ofassets, including certain sihrations that may lead to

material inadequate financial reporting. In addition, does not keep verifiable records ofthe results of
monitoring activities perfonned to avoid embezzlement and the identification and evaluation of the

different 
-types of fiaud risk factors associated with the Municipality's core processes The

aforementioned conditions represent material weatnesses in the Municipality's intemal controls over

financial reporting.

CNTERIA:

Article 6.004 oflaw No. 81 of August 30, 1991, known as the l,,onomous Municipalities Act of Puerto

Rico (Law No. 81), states the Municipaliry shall perform intewentions, audits and monitoring activities

over ill municipal operations finanaed with public funds, including: (1) the acquisition, use and

disposition of capital assets, (2) hansactions and oPerations of all administrative units (municipal

de;atments), andi3) all accounts, records, books, contracts, budgets and any other financial activities

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

These conditions arose by the lack of effective controls and procedures for the evaluation of significant

risk factors in all municipal areas, the lack of proper planning ofcontinued monitoring activities, alld the

lack of proper allocation ofhuman rcsources and time schedules to perform the activities required by law.

These conditions, if not corrected, may incrcase the risk of instances of material unforeseen errors and

irregularities that may not be detected in a timely manner by the cunent intemal controls of the

Municipality.
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RECOMMENDATION:

- We also recommend the Municipality to prepare a manual of policies and procedures specifically
designed to prevent and detect fraud. The Municipality should also keep formal documentation of all
fraud prevention and monitoring activities performed by management, including the identification and

_ evaluation of all fraud risk faciors Fratrd nsk assessmenls shorld he rcviewed periodically to consider
changes in the operating policies ofthe Municipality and the control environment.
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Sectiotr III - Federal Award Findings and Qu6tioned Costs

Proqram FindinesNoncomplialeq&)commendations
A[ Federa] Programs 11-04 FINANCLAL RIPORTING

Ouestioned Cost

Statement of Condition:

Our review ol the Single Audit Reporting Package and
Data Collecr;on Form lor each o[ the rwo prior years
submifted to Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC),
disclosed tbat one year was submitted after the required
submission date, as detailed below.

Ended
lune 30, 2010

Criteria:

Due
Date
March 31,2011

Date Past Due
Submitted &I!
June 20,2011 81days

According to OMB Circular A-133 section 320, Report
Submission, the audit shail be completed and the data
collection form described and reporting package shall be
submitted within the earlier of30 days after receipt ofthe
audito/s report(s), or nine months after the end of the
audit period, uniess a longer pe.iod is agreed to in
advance by the cognizant or oversight agency for audit.
Unless restricted by law or regulation, the auditee shall
make copies available for public inspection.

Cause and Effect:

This condition occuned because the Municipality has not
adopted adequate intemal controls and procedures
designed to ensure the timely submission of progmms
reports and the lack of adequate training and supewision
of the municipal employees in charge of the prepararion
of the aforementioned reports.

This condition, if not corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances ofmaterial non-compliances with the
laws and regulations applicable to the Program.

Recommendation:

The Municipality should improve existing procedures to
ensure the timely submission of the Single Audit
Reporting Package and Data Collection Form, in order
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to comply with Federal regulation. Also, the
Municipaliq should consider implemenring a reporting
calendar to maintain all personnel aware ofthe reporting
deadlines of each federal financial report. This will
provide an additional tool to help the Municipality in
complying with the federal regulation-

Ouestioned Cost

NONE

1I-05 EQIJIPMENT AND RXAL PROPtrRTY NIANAGEMENT

Statement of Condition:

The Municipality has not complied with the property
management requirements. There were no physical
inventories performed during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011.

The Community Development Block Crant Program has
a subs;diary ledger of equipment acquired with federal
funds, however, such subsidiary ledger does not comply
with federal requirements because it does not: (l) have
information needed to calculate th€ federal share ofthe
cost of the equipment, (2) identify the grant under
which the program acquired the equipment, (3) have
information about the location, use and condition ofthe
equipment and the date the information was obtained,
and (4) have all pertinent information on the ukimate
hansfer, replacement, or disposal ofthe equipment.

Furlhermore, there is no evidence that the total amount
of capital expenditures and the composition of capital
assets incured of the Community Deveiopment Block
Grant have been reconciled with the geneml ledger or
other control account to enhance the conhols to prevent
unauthorized disposition of assets.

Cdteria:

29 CFR 97.32 (d) (2) established that the Municipality
should take the physical inventory and reconcile the
results with the propertv records. In addition, Section
(d) (3) establishes that a control system must be
developed to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss,
damage, or theft ofthe propertv-
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Findin gs,Noncomp!i!4!qBpe9!uq9&!atio!!

Federal regulations also require that, every two years, at
a minimum, a physical inventory shall be conducted and
the results shall be reconciled with property records to
verit/ the existence, current utilization, and continued
need for the equipment. Any discrepancies between
quantities d€termined by the physical inspection with
those shown in th€ accounting records shall be
investigated to determine the causes ol the differences.
Property records shall be accurate. Property records
shall include the following for each item:

. A description of the equipment including
manufacturer's se al numbers.

. Identification number, as the manufacturer's
serial numbe$-

. Identification of the grant under which the
recipient acquired rhe equipment.

. The information needed to calculate the
federal share ofthe cost ofthe equipment.

. Acquisition dare and unit acquici.ion cosr.

. Location, use and condition of the
equipment and the date the infomation was
obtained.

. All pertinent information on lhe ultimate
transfer, replacement or disposal of the
equipment.

Cause and Effect:

These instances of non-compliance occured because
the Property Division of the Municipality has not
enforced the requirement to perform a capital assets

inventory and to ensure the proper accountability of
capital assets dudng the fiscal year ended June 30,
201 1. Accordingly, the Municipality's intemal controls
in place over capital assets are not designed to
effectively account for capital assets, since it do not
allow for the reconciliation ofdetailed property records
with the gene.al ledger. These inadequate property
intemal controls may expose the Municipality to
questioned or disallowed costs by the federal
govemment for lost or stolen property. This condition
represents a material \r'eakness in the Municipality's
intemal controls over financial reporting.

Ouestioned Cosr
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Furthermore, this situation represents a significant risk
of loss of capital assets because there is a lack of
accountability for acquircd capital assets- Any federally
funded capital assets lost would need to be repaid to the
federal govemment with municipal funds.

Recommendation:

A physical inventory of the Federal Programs capital
assets should be taken as soon as possible. Physical
inventory amounts should be reconciled with fte
property recorded on the subsidiary ledgers. This
information should be reconciled with the monthly
disbursements made against the budgetarJ accounts used
for property acquisitions. Dispositions must also be
made only upon approval of the Munic;pal Propefty
Administrator and the Finance.

r T-06 FEDERAL CASH MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Statement of Condition:

The Municipality has not established effective cash
management procedures. During our review of the
drawdowns performed during the year, we noted the
following deficiency:

a. The Municipality performed 27 drawdown during the
2010-2011 fiscal year amounting to $607,172. For 7
drawdown amounting to $279,802 or (26%) the
disbursements related to the funds requested has a delay
of 3 days or more between the funds receiving date and
the disbursing date.

Criteria:

Federal regulations require that Grantee shall conform to
the standards applicable to advances from Federal
agencies. Amormts requested should be limited to the
Programs immediate cash needs.

Cause and Effect:

This condition arose because the Municipality has not
implemented specific intemal controls and procedures
designed to minimize the time elapsed between the time

NONE
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when drawdowns are made and the subsequent time
when disburs€ment offedeml funds are carried out- This
condition increases the risks of avoidable interest
income and instances of idle cash balances in the
program's bank accounts.

Recommendation:

In accordance with Federal regulations, the Municipality
should estimate dmwdown's of Federal funds as closely
as possible to the actual disbursements. Also, the
Municipality shoold established procedures ro minimile
the time elapsing between dmwdowns and
disbursements.

II-07 DA\'IS-BACON ACT

Statement of Condition:

As part of our audit tests we selected two (100%)
constrnction projects out of 2 projects executed during
the fiscal year. The coostruction projects were the
followingi

. Disefro y Construcci6n del Parque de Pelota, Cancha
de Baloncesto y Centro de Usos Miltiples de la
Comunidad Los Cuadritos, Barrio Asomante

. Repavimentaci6n de varios caminos municipales
Banio Caonillas y Extensi6n San Luis

The following exceptions were noted during our
examination ofthe projects files:

(a) In one (1) 50% project file, one employee was paid
below the minimum salary rate-

(b) In one (1) 50% project file, the payrolls submitted by
contactor are not certified as required by the federal
regulations.

(c) In one (1) 50% project file, the pa]..oils submitted by
the conffactor do not include the required employee
information (address, social security number and
position).

Ouestioned Cost

NONE
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(d) In two (2) 100% of project files, there were no
evidence of the required preconstruction conference.

(e) In one (1) 50% of project file, there were no
evidence of irterviews performed to project
employees.

Criteria:

Non-lederal enrilies shall include in their consrrucrion
contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act a requirement
that the contracto or subcontractor comply with the
requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act and the DOL
regulations (29 CFR part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions
Applicable to Contacts Gov€ming Federally Financed
and Assisted Construction"). This includes a
requirement for the contractor or subcontractor to submit
to the non-Federal entity weekly, for each week in which
any contract work is performed, a copy of the payroll
and a statement of compliance (certified payrolts) (29
CFR sections 5.5 and 5.6).

Cause and Effect:

This condition arose because the Muflicipality has not
implemented specific intemal controls and procedures
desi8ned ro carr, out effecti!e monitoring activities o!er
contractors engaged in projects financed with federal
funds, including, but not limited to, the enforcement of
compliance with contractual clauses related to Davis-
Bacon Act and the training of municipal employees
about this law.

This condition, ifnot corrected, may increase the sk of
avoidable instances of material non-compliances with the
laws and regulations applicable to the P.ogam.

Recommendation:

The Municipality should establish procedures to
ascertain that ali documents submitted by the contracto.
are revie\\ed and approved on a timel) basis lo ensure
compliance with labor sandards.

Ouestioned Cost
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CoMMoNwEALTH or Puf,RTo RICo
MUNICIPALITY OT AIBONITO

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2011

Program

Section 8 HAP
CFDA No. 14.182
RQ46R000013

F jndings,Noncompliance Recommendations

11-08 FINAI\CLAL R.EPORTING

Statement of Condition:

Our review ofthe monthly Housing Ownels Application
for Housing Assistant Payments (Form HUD 52670)
submitted to Housing and Urban Development offices,
disclosed that they were submitted after the required
submission date, as detailed below.

Ouestioned Cost

NONE

Past Due
Davs

6 days
I day
I day
I day

Month
July 2010
November 2010
February 2011
March 2011

Criteria:

Due Date
Date Submitted

June 10,2010 June 16,2010
October I l, 2010 Octob€r 12, 2010
January 10, 2011 January 11, 2011

February 10,2011 February 11,2011

According to I{UD Handbook 4350.3 - Housing Owne/s
Application for Housing Assistant Payments (Form
HUD 52670). The deadline for transmission ofvouchers
(form HUD-52670) and all related TRACS files
suppo(ing the voucher is the 10th calendar day of the
month directly preceding the voucher payment month.
For example, the February voucher TRACS transmission
would be due on January 10.

Cause and Effect:

This condition occured because the Project
Administrator has not adopted adequate inlemal controls
and p.ocedues designed to ensure the timely submission
of program reports and the lack of adequate training and

supervision of the municipal employees in charge of the
preparation of the aforementioned reports- This
condition, if not corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances of material non-compliances with the
laws and regulafions applicable to the Program.

Recommendation:

fhe Project Administrators should improve e\isting
procedures to ensure the timely submission of the
Housing Ownels Application for Housing Assistant
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COMMoNIf,ALTH oF PUERTO IUCO
MUNtctPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs
June 30,2011

- ProCxam Findings,Noncompliance Recommendations Ouestioned Cost

Payments (Form HUD 52670), in order to comply with
Iederal regulation. Also, the Project Administrator
should cons;der implementing a reporting calendar to
maintain all personnel aware of the reporting deadlines
of each federal financial repoft. This wili provide an
additional tool to help the Project Administrators in
complying with the iederal.egulat;on.

Total Questioned Costs IIONE
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COMMOI$VEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Summary schedule of prior years audit findings
Fiscal Year 2009-2010

June 30,2011
The following schedule contains the finding number and title of each of the findings included in the

Report on Compliance and Intemal Control Based on the Audit of the Ceneral PurPose Financial

Statements for Performed in Accordance with Gov€mment Auditing Standards for the Fiscal Year ended

June 30,2010. Under the heading Conective Action Takeo there willbe the following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the conective action plan was partially implemented and the fioding

repeated in fiscal year 2010-2011).

NR- Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 2010-2011.

Finding
Number Title

10-01 Deficienci€s in the uniform accounting system and other
accounting records

Depositing of cash receipts io bank accounts

Inactive and unnecessary funds and inactive bank accounts

Deficiencies in accounting records ofcapital assets

Lack of monitoring and fraud prevention activities

l0-02

10-03

10-04

l0-05

Corrective
Action
Taken

NR

FR

FR

NR

NR
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COMMoNWEALTH OT PUERTO RICO
MTJNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Summary schedule of prior years audit findings
Fiscal Year 2009-2010

June 30, 2011

The following schedule contains the finding number and title of each of the findings included in the

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Intemal Control over
Compliance in accodance with OMB Circular A-133 for the Fiscal Year endedJune 30,2010. Under the

heading Corective Action Taken there willbe the following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was partially implemented and the finding
repeated in fiscal year 2010-2011).

NR- Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year2010-2011.

Finding
Number
l0-06

10-07

10-08

l0-09

l0-10

10-t I

10- 12

l0-13

10-14

Corrective
Action
Taken

FR

FR

NR

NR

FR

NR

FR

FR

NR

Title
Intemal Controls - Information and communication

Procuement, Suspension and Debarment

Equipment and rcal property management

Federal Cash Management System

Federal Cash Management System

Davis-Bacon Act

Earmarking Requirement

Inadequate Documentation of Participant Files

Financial Reporting
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COMMO\WEALTH OF PUERTO ITCO
MLTNIctPALITY or AIBoNITo

ummary schedule ofprioryears audit findings

June 30, 2011

- The following schedule contains the finding number and title of each of the findings included in the

Report on C;mpliance and lntemal Control Based on the Audit of the General Purpose Financial

Statements for Performed in Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards for the Fiscal Year ended

- June 30, 2009. Under the heading Corrective Action Taken there will be the following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the conective action plan was partially implemented and ihe finding
repeated in fiscal year 20 I 0-20 1 1 ).

- NR - Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 2010-2011.

- Finding
Number

- 2009-Il-01 Material weakness in prepared financial statements

2009-ll-02 Material weakness in prepared financial statements

2009-II-03 Material noncompliance and material weakness in preparcd

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Title

Corrective
Action
Taken

FR

NR

FR
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CoMMoN\ EALTHof PUERToRICO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Summary schedule of prior years audit findi.gs
Fiscal Year 2008-2009

June 30,201I

- The following schedul€ contains the finding number and title of each of the findings included in the

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Progmm and Intemal Control over

Compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2009. Under the

- heading Conective Action Taken there wili be the following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicatingthe corrective action plan was tully implemented)-

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the conective action plan was partially implemented and the fiDding

repeated in fiscal year 20i0-201 1).

NR- Not resolved yet- Finding repeated in fiscal year20l0-2011.

- Finding
Number Title

Corrective
Action
Taken

PR

PR

NR

NR

FR

FR

_ 2009-IIl-01 Allowable Cost/Cost Principle

2009-III-02 Cash Management

- 2009-IlI-03 Davis Bacon

2009-III-04 Procurement,SuspensionandDebarment

2009-lll-05 Reponing

_ 2009J,1-00 Reponing
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Expenditures of Federal Awards

Ind ents alrd Schedu

The Honorable Mayor, Members
ofthe Municipal Legislature and
People of the Municipality of Aibonito,
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-
t)?e activities, each major firnd, and the aggregate remaining fund bfomation of the Mudcipaliq of
Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico (the Municipality), as of and fo. the fiscal year ended
June 30, 201l, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic finarcial statements as listed in the
accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality,s
management. Orr responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based orl our audit.

Except as discussed in the followi[g paragraphs, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards gellemlly accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Goyernment Auditing Starulards, issued by the Comptroller Geneml of the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plal and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assuance about whether the Iinaicial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examiaing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement piesentation. We believe that our audit
pror ides a reasonable basis lor our opinions.

As discussed iII Note 1, the Municipality did not have complete and accurate accounting records of its
capital assets acquired or consfucted before January 9, 2009. In additioq the Mu cipality did not
perform a physical inventory of such capital assets during the last five fiscal years, which ultimately
affects the valuation of such assets at June 30, 2011. Accotdingly, we could not apply adequate auditing
procedues to ascertain the existence, valuation and ownetship of those capital assets recorded irl the
accompan) ing statement of net assets lor $ I&S5#JdP, ner qfaccumulaled depr,\t11itt,t1l,"iu,ionor$]ffi6t
As discussed in Note 5, the other (nonmajor) govemmental funds ofthe Municipality repoted as part of
its assets, the balances due from other govermental funds amounting to $1,901,445 at Jwe 30, 2011 of
which 

_$ 
1.900_.731- represenl unsupponed inter-fund loans carried over Lori,1i,ua4 q.2004 wirhoul

being collected. The Municipalily did not have complete and accuate accounting rccords of inter-fund
balatrces recorded in books on or befote January 9, 2009, including a subsidiary record documenting the
collection procedures made by management and the repalment and other terms and conditions of inter-
fund loans, tansfers and reimbursements among govemmental fi-uds. These conditions raise substantial
doubts about the existence and valuation of a portion of the other (nonmajor) govemmental firads'
uncollected inter-fund advances amouming to $1.900.731 at June i0. l0ll. The uitimate outcome of
the existence, valuation and collectibilit) of thiaforementioned inter-fund adlances cannot presently be
detemined.


